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This meeting has been noticed 
according to the Brown Act rules.  

The Board of Directors meets 

regularly on the third Monday of 
each month.  The meetings begin 

at 7:00 PM.  

 

 

 

 

 

 AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 

Board of Directors 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

****************** 

Monday, December 15, 2014, 7:00 pm 

Conference Room, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA 

Staff notes will be available on the District web site at 
http://www.mpwmd.dst.ca.us/asd/board/boardpacket/2014/2014.htm   

by 5 PM on Friday, December 12, 2014. 
 

Brenda Lewis will participate by telephone from 1758 Broadway Avenue, Seaside, CA 93955 

The 7 PM Meeting will be televised on Comcast Channels 25 & 28.  Refer to broadcast schedule on page 3. 

  

 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

   

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
    

 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  Anyone wishing to address the Board on Closed Session, Consent Calendar, 

Information Items or matters not listed on the agenda may do so only during Oral Communications.  Please limit your 

comment to three (3) minutes.  The public may comment on all other items at the time they are presented to the Board.   
    

 CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar consists of routine items for which staff has prepared a 

recommendation.  Approval of the Consent Calendar ratifies the staff recommendation.  Consent Calendar items may 

be pulled for separate consideration at the request of a member of the public, or a member of the Board.  Following 

adoption of the remaining Consent Calendar items, staff will give a brief presentation on the pulled item.  Members of 

the public are requested to limit individual comment on pulled Consent Items to three (3) minutes.   
 1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the November 17, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 

 2. Adopt Board Meeting Schedule for 2015 

 3. Consider Approval of Amendment to General Manager's Contract 

 4. Consider Approval of Pay Differential for Employees Caused by Increase in Tax for PERS 

Contributions  

 5. Consider Expenditure of Funds to Contract for a Limited-Term Senior Fisheries Biologist 

 6. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2014-19 -- Updating Rule 24, Table 3: Capacity Fee History 

   

   

 

 Board of Directors 

David Potter, Chair – Monterey County 

Board of Supervisors 

Kristi Markey, Vice Chair – Division 3 
Brenda Lewis – Division 1 

Andrew Clarke - Division 2 

Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 
Robert S. Brower, Sr. – Division 5 

David Pendergrass, Mayoral Representative 

 

General Manager 

David J. Stoldt 

 This agenda was posted at the District office at 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G 
Monterey on Wednesday, December 10, 2014.  Staff reports regarding 

these agenda items will be available for public review on Thursday, 

December 11 at the District office and at the Carmel, Carmel Valley, 

Monterey, Pacific Grove and Seaside libraries. After staff reports have 

been distributed, if additional documents are produced by the District 

and provided to a majority of the Board regarding any item on the 
agenda, they will be available at the District office during normal 

business hours, and posted on the District website at 

http://www.mpwmd.dst.ca.us/asd/board/boardpacket/2014/2014.htm.  
Documents distributed at the meeting will be made available in the 

same manner. The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is 

scheduled for January 28, 2015 at 7 pm. 
 

   

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.mpwmd.dst.ca.us/asd/board/boardpacket/2014/2014.htm
http://www.mpwmd.dst.ca.us/asd/board/boardpacket/2014/2014.htm


MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 

December 15, 2014 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

 

 

 7. Receive Alternative Measurement Method Report for Determining Annual Costs for Post- 

Employment Benefits 

 8. Review and Accept Independent Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 

 9. Consider Adoption of Treasurer’s Report for October 2014 

  

 GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 10. Status Report on California American Water Compliance with State Water Resources Control 

Board Order 2009-0060 and Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision 

 11. Update on Development of Water Supply Projects   

 12. Report on Drought Response 

   

 ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 13. Report on November 17, 2014 Closed Session of the Board 

   

 DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, CONFERENCE 

ATTENDANCE AND MEETINGS) 

 14. Oral Reports on Activities of County, Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/Associations 

   

 PRESENTATIONS 

 15. California American Water – How to Read Your Water Meter and Your Monthly Water Bill  

 16. Presentation re 2014 Groundwater Management Legislation 

   

 PUBLIC HEARINGS – Public comment will be received on each of these items.  Please limit your comment to 

three (3) minutes per item. 

 17. Consider Adoption of January through March 2015 Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and 

Budget 

  Action:  The Board will consider approval of a proposed production strategy for the California 

American Water Distribution Systems for the three-month period of January through March 2015.  

The strategy sets monthly goals for surface and groundwater production from various sources 

within the California American Water systems. 

   

 ACTION ITEMS – Public comment will be received on each of these items.  Please limit your comment to three 

(3) minutes per item. 

 18. Consider Adoption of Policy on Outdoor Restaurant Seating 

  Action:  The Board will direct staff on clarification of the District’s outdoor seating policy. 

   

 19. Select Schedule for Rotation of Directors into the Positions of Board Chair and Vice Chair 

  Action:  The Board will review options for rotation of Directors into the positions of Board Chair 

and Vice Chair and determine the preferred rotation for 2015. 

   

 20. Conduct Election of Officers for 2015 

  Action:  The Board will conduct an election for the positions of Board Chair, Vice Chair, 

Secretary, and Treasurer.   

   

 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS   The public may address the Board on Information Items 

and Staff Reports during the Oral Communications portion of the meeting.  Please limit your comments to three 

minutes. 
 21. Letters Received 

 22. Committee Reports 

 23. Monthly Allocation Report 

 24. Water Conservation Program Report  

 25. Carmel River Fishery Report for November 2014 

 26. Monthly Water Supply and California American Water Production Report  

 27. Semi-Annual Groundwater Quality Monitoring Report 
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 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board may adjourn to closed or executive session to consider specific 

matters dealing with pending or threatened litigation, certain personnel matters, or certain property acquisition matters. 
  

 1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov. Code 54956.9 (a)) 
  MPWMD v. SWRCB; Santa Clara 1-10-CV-163328 – CDO (6th District Appellate Case 

#H039566 

   

 ADJOURN  

  

 Board Meeting Broadcast Schedule – Comcast Channels 25 & 28  

View Live Webcast at Ampmedia.org 

 Ch. 25, Sundays, 7 PM Monterey 

 Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside   

 Ch. 28, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   

 Ch. 28, Fridays, 9 AM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   

   

 
Upcoming Board Meetings 

 Wed. January 28, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 

 Wed. February 25, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 

 

 

Upon request, MPWMD will make a reasonable effort to provide written agenda 

materials in appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related modification or 

accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to enable individuals with 

disabilities to participate in public meetings.  MPWMD will also make a 

reasonable effort to provide translation services upon request.  Please submit a 

written request, including your name, mailing address, phone number and brief 

description of the requested materials and preferred alternative format or auxiliary 

aid or service by 5:00 PM on Thursday, December 11, 2014.  Requests should be 

sent to the Board Secretary, MPWMD, P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA, 93942.  You 

may also fax your request to the Administrative Services Division at 831-644-

9560, or call 831-658-5600. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2014\20141215\1215agenda.docx 



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2014 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:    

 

Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Attached as Exhibit 1-A are draft minutes of the November 17, 2014 Regular 

meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   District staff recommends approval of the minutes with adoption of 

the Consent Calendar. 

 

EXHIBIT 

1-A Draft Minutes of the November 17, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 
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EXHIBIT 1-A 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

Board of Directors 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

November 17, 2014 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the 

Water Management District conference room.   

 

 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: 

David Potter – Chair, Monterey County Board of 

Supervisors Representative 

Kristi Markey – Vice Chair, Division 3 

Brenda Lewis – Division 1 

Andrew Clarke – Division 2 

Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 

Robert S. Brower, Sr. – Division 5 

David Pendergrass – Mayoral Representative 

 

Directors Absent: None 

 

General Manager present:  David J. Stoldt 

 

District Counsel present:  David Laredo 

 

  

The assembly recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

   

No comments were directed to the Board.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
   

On a motion of Brower and second of Byrne, the 

Consent Calendar was approved on a vote of 7 – 0 by 

Brower, Byrne, Clarke, Lewis, Markey, Pendergrass 

and Potter. 

 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Approved.  1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the October 

8, 2014 Special Board Meeting and the 

October 20, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 

    

Approved expenditure of $10,000.  2. Consider Expenditure for Purchase of 

Surface Water Computation Software 

    

Approved expenditure of $41,700.  3. Consider Expenditure of Budgeted Funds for 

IT Hardware Replacement 

    

Approved.  4. Consider Adoption of Resolution of 

Congratulations to David J. Stoldt 

    

Approved.  5. Consider Appointment of Director Clarke to 

Board Committees 

    

http://www.mpwmd.net/
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Approved.  6. Consider Approval of First Quarter Fiscal 

Year 2014-15 Investment Report 

    

Approved.  7. Consider Adoption of Treasurer’s Report for 

September 2014 

    

  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

A summary of Mr. Stoldt’s presentation is on file at 

the District office and can be viewed on the Water 

Management District’s website.  

 8. Status Report on California American 

Water Compliance with State Water 

Resources Control Board Order 2009-0060 

and Seaside Groundwater Basin 

Adjudication Decision 

    

Stoldt reported the following.  (A) The California 

Coastal Commission considered California American 

Water Company’s appeal of a decision by the Marina 

City Council to deny a permit for installation of test 

slant wells.  The Coastal Commission upheld the 

appeal, and Cal-Am may now begin work on the 

slant wells.  (B) Representatives of plaintiff parties 

related to the Cease and Desist Order (CDO) lawsuit 

will meet with State Water Resources Control Board 

staff next week on deferral of the CDO.  (C) The 

project description has been completed for the EIR 

on the Pure Water Monterey project.  The draft EIR 

should be completed in March 2015. (D) Staff from 

the Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control 

Agency and the Water Management District met with 

Deputy Director of the Division of Water Rights and 

the Executive Director of the State Water Resources 

Control Board on distribution of Proposition 1 funds.  

(E) The EIR on the Odello water project was recently 

released.  The Board of Directors may consider an 

ordinance related to the project in March or April 

2015.  

 9. Update on Development of Water Supply 

Projects   

     

A summary of Ms. Locke’s comments can be 

reviewed on the Water Management District’s 

website. 

 10. Report on Drought Response 

   

  ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

No report.  The Board of Directors did not meet in 

closed session at 5:30 pm on November 17, 2014. 

 11. Report on 5:30 pm Closed Session of the 

Board 

   

 

 

 

 DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING AB 

1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, CONFERENCE 

ATTENDANCE AND MEETINGS) 

No reports submitted to the Board of Directors.  12. Oral Reports on Activities of County, 

Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/ 

Associations 

   

  PRESENTATIONS 

Chair Potter presented Stoldt with a framed 

resolution signed by the seven directors.  Each 

director expressed appreciation to Stoldt for his 

accomplishments.  Stoldt thanked the Board of 

Directors for their support. 

 13. Present Resolution of Congratulations to 

David J. Stoldt – Named General Manager 

of the Year by the California Special 

Districts Association 

   



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – November 17, 2014 --Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

  

California State University Monterey Bay students 

Jordan Duffner, Jeff Toyoshima, Miguel Padilla and 

Mary Ann Hernandez gave a presentation to the 

Board that described their proposal for establishment 

of a fund to implement water saving technologies for 

agricultural interests that utilize recycled wastewater 

for irrigation.  The reduction in agricultural use could 

result in additional recycled water for groundwater 

recharge and urban use.  The entire text of the 

presentation is on file at the District office and can be 

viewed on the MPWMD website. 

 14. Funding Farms to Save Cities: An Idea for 

Water Recycling from CSUMB Students 

   

No public hearing items were submitted for Board 

consideration. 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

    

  ACTION ITEMS 

On a motion by Markey and second of Byrne, this 

item was continued to the December 17, 2014 Board 

meeting.  The motion was approved on a vote of 7 – 

0 by Markey, Byrne, Brower, Clarke, Lewis, 

Pendergrass and Potter. 

 

Public comment.  Todd Bennett, Planner for the City 

of Monterey and Vice Chair of the Technical 

Advisory Committee, requested that the item be 

continued to the December Board meeting.  He stated 

that the City of Monterey supports rules that reduce 

water use; however, no data has been presented to 

prove that outdoor restaurant seating increases water 

use. 

 15. Consider Adoption of Policy on Outdoor 

Restaurant Seating 

    

There was no discussion of the Informational 

Items/Staff Reports. 
 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 

  16. Letters Received 

  17. Committee Report  

  18. Carmel River Fishery Report 

  19. Monthly Allocation Report 

  20. Water Conservation Program Report 

  21. Monthly Water Supply and California 

American Water Production Report 

  22. Receive and File First quarter Financial 

Activity Report for Fiscal year 2014-15 

  23. Minutes of Monterey Peninsula Water 

Supply Project Governance Committee 

    

The meeting was adjourned to closed session at 7:40 

pm. 
 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

  1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing 

Litigation (Gov. Code 54956.9 (a)) 

  A. MPWMD v. SWRCB; Santa Clara 1-10-CV-

163328 – CDO (6th District Appellate Case 

#H039566 

  B. Water Plus v. MPWMD, Case No. M125274 

  C. Monterey Peninsula Taxpayers Association 

v. MPWMD; Case No. M123512 
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  D. Thum v. MPWMD; Monterey Case No. 

M113598; 6th District Appellate Case 

#H039566) 

    

  2. Conference with Real Property 

Negotiators 

   Address:  1910 General Jim Moore 

Boulevard, Seaside, CA  93955 

   Agency Negotiator:  David J. Stoldt, 

General Manager 

    

  3. Public Employee Annual Performance 

Evaluation (Gov. Code 54957) – General 

Manager 

    

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:15 

pm. 
 ADJOURNMENT  

 

 

 

 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2014\20141215\ConsentClndr\01\item1_exh1a.docx Arlene M. Tavani, Deputy District Secretary 

 

  



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

2. ADOPT BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2015 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt Program/ N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:  

 

Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Attached as Exhibit 2-A is a proposed Board meeting schedule for the months of 

January 2015 through February 2016.  This schedule includes the regular monthly Board 

meetings, a budget workshop, and three supplemental reserve meeting dates should the need 

arise for special meetings/workshops during the upcoming year.   The regular Board meetings in 

January and February are set for the fourth Wednesday of the month.  The change is required 

because the third Monday of January is the Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday holiday, and the 

third Monday of February is the Presidents’ Day holiday.  The Board meetings will be conducted 

in the District’s conference room unless there is a need to meet in another location.  Changes to a 

meeting time or location will be noticed on the meeting agenda and the Water Management 

District website. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Review and adopt the 2015 MPWMD Board meeting schedule. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The meeting dates were selected in coordination with the Monterey Regional 

Water Pollution Control Agency to insure that our meeting dates do not conflict with their 

Board’s meeting schedule.  In addition, there should be no conflict with any regularly scheduled 

city council or planning commission meeting within the District boundaries on those meeting 

dates that are set for the fourth or fifth Wednesday. 

          

EXHIBIT 

2-A Proposed Board Meeting Schedule for 2015 
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EXHIBIT 2-A 

 

DRAFT 

MPWMD Board Meeting Schedule 
 January 2015 through February 2016 

 

Meetings begin at 7 PM in the District Conference Room unless noted otherwise. 

 

 Day of 

Week 

Date Time Type of Meeting 

 

2015 Wednesday January 28 7 PM Regular  

 Wednesday February 25 7 PM Regular 

 Monday March 16 7 PM Regular 

 Wednesday March 25 7 PM Special Meeting/Workshop* 

 Monday April 20 7 PM Regular 

 Monday May 18 7 PM Regular 

 Wednesday May 27 7 PM Workshop – FY 2015/2016 

Budget  

 Monday June 15 7 PM Regular 

 Monday July 20 7 PM Regular 

 Monday August 17 7 PM Regular 

 Wednesday August 26 7 PM Special Meeting/Workshop* 

 Monday September 21 7 PM Regular 

 Monday October 19 7 PM Regular 

 Wednesday October 28 7 PM Special Meeting/Workshop* 

 Monday November 16 7 PM Regular 

 Monday December 14 7 PM Regular 

2016 Wednesday January 27 7 PM Regular 

 Wednesday February 24 7 PM  Regular 

*Tentative meeting date.  Please check with Water Management District office to determine if 

the meeting will be conducted.   

 

 

 

 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2014\20141215\ConsentClndr\02\item2_exh2a.docx 
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SUMMARY:  On November 17, 2014 the Board met and discussed the General Manager’s 

annual performance appraisal.  The Board was very satisfied with the General Manager’s 

performance and noted that the General Manager was awarded “General Manager of the Year” 

statewide in 2014 by the California Special Districts Association, advanced the Pure Water 

Monterey groundwater replenishment project by taking a leadership role in the negotiation of 

source water agreements, drafted and carried through the legislature SB 936 which will provide 

significant savings on the Cal-Am desal plant, navigated the “Measure O” campaign, improving 

the District’s stature in the process, and has continued to improve the District’s public perception 

among community groups, businesses, elected officials, and individuals.  As a result, the Board 

recommended a revision in the General Manager’s annual compensation to $195,000 and a 

revision of his monthly vehicle reimbursement to $500. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Amend section III.A and III.D of the “Agreement for Employment of 

General Manager” to reflect the revised annual compensation, effective September 1, 2014. 

 

EXHIBIT 

None 
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ITEM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

3. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO GENERAL MANAGER 

CONTRACT 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

   

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/  N/A  

 General Manager Line Item:  

      

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate: None 

    

General Counsel  Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

4. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PAY DIFFERENTIAL FOR EMPLOYEES 

CAUSED BY INCREASE IN TAX FOR PERS CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   No 

 

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ Personnel 

 General Manager Line Item No.:   Salaries & Benefits 

 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:   $24,000 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  In September 2013, the District negotiated a 3-year Memorandum of 

Understanding with the General Staff Unit, Management Unit, and the Confidential Unit. As part 

of the negotiation, staff salaries for the 3 bargaining units were increased by 6%, but the units 

were also asked to contribute 6% towards PERS contribution. The intent of this action was that 

employee take-home pay would not be affected.  This has not been the case since the employee 

contribution towards the employer portion of the PERS contribution cannot be pre-tax, impacting 

the employee take-home pay.  The impact in net pay to an employee varies based on their 

individual tax bracket.   

 

The total impact to the employees has been around $24,000 over two years.  Staff is seeking 

approval to reimburse employees based on their individual impact in net pay in two annual 

payments.  The difference in net pay impact for 2014 will be paid in December 2014, and the 

second payment will be made in 2015.  The total impact of this reimbursement will not exceed 

$24,000.  Notification was provided to the Union 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approving the pay differential for employees 

caused by increase in tax for PERS Contribution of not to exceed $24,000.  The Administrative 

Committee reviewed this item on December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

 

EXHIBIT 

None 
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ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

5. CONSIDER EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS TO CONTRACT FOR A LIMITED-

TERM SENIOR FISHERIES BIOLOGIST 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   Included in FY 2014-

2015 Budget 

 

From: David J. Stoldt, 

General Manager 

Program/ Aquatic Resources  

Fisheries  

  Line Item No.:   2-3-1 J 

 

Prepared By: Cynthia Schmidlin Cost Estimate:   Up to $3,000 

 

General Counsel Approval:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  In 2005 District staff built and installed a series of 15 wooden weirs between the 

rearing channel bays at the Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility. These weirs allowed staff to 

separate fish, brought to the Facility from fish rescues in the lower Carmel River, by different 

size and age classes.  The weirs are critical to the operation of the rearing channel, but have 

deteriorated over time and need to be replaced.  Each weir is unique in size and structure and 

must be custom built.  The original design and build of the weirs was done by Mr. Dave 

Dettman, Senior Fisheries Biologist at the District at the time.  Since Mr. Dettman is familiar 

with the Sleepy Hollow weirs and has considered several upgraded features, he would be the best 

person to build the set of replacements. His work would entail taking measurements at the 

Facility, purchasing the necessary materials, construction of the weirs, and the final fitting and 

placement of the completed weirs into the rearing channel. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the expenditure of funds to hire one limited-term Senior 

Fisheries Biologist at a rate of $45.00 per hour. 

 

IMPACTS TO STAFF/RESOURCES:  The total cost of the limited-term contract described 

above would not exceed $3,000.  Additionally, the District would pay for the required building 

materials. The FY 2014-2015 budget includes $15,000 for rearing channel screen replacement.  

It is listed in the Project Expenditures section, under the Aquatic Resources Fisheries Program.   

 

EXHIBIT 

None 
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ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

6. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19 -- UPDATING RULE 

24, TABLE 3: CAPACITY FEE HISTORY   

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/   

 General Manager Line Item No.:      

 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee considered this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Rule 24(C) of the District Rules and Regulations stipulates that the Capacity Fee 

History Table shall be updated annually by Resolution of the Board to reflect the current year’s 

Capacity Fee.  Resolution 2014-19 (Exhibit 6-A) updates Rule 24, Table 3: Capacity Fee 

History, to reflect current year’s capacity fee of the District.  A marked up version of the 

proposed table is found as Exhibit 6-B. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 2014-19, 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Updating Rule 24, Table 3: Capacity Fee History.   

 

BACKGROUND:  District’s Rule 24(C), allows changes to the Capacity Fee History Table by 

resolution rather than by ordinance.  The Capacity Fee History Table was last updated on 

September20, 2010 by adoption of Ordinance No. 145. 

 

EXHIBITS 

6-A Resolution No. 2014-19 

6-B Marked up version of Rule 24, Table 3: Capacity Fee History 
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EXHIBIT 6-A 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  

UPDATING RULE 24, TABLE 3: CAPACITY FEE HISTORY 
 

 WHEREAS, Capacity Fee charges of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management 

District (MPWMD) are set forth in the MPWMD Rules and Regulations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Rule 24 (C) of the District stipulates that the Capacity Fee History Table 

shall be updated annually by Resolution of the Board to reflect the current year’s Capacity Fee;   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Monterey 

Peninsula Water Management District hereby shall update the Capacity Fee Table as set forth in 

Attachment 1 to this Resolution; and that these changes shall become effective immediately. 
 

 On motion of Director _________, and second by Director _________, the foregoing 

resolution is duly adopted this 15th day of December 2014, by the following votes: 
 

AYES:   
 

NAYES:   
 

ABSENT:   
 
 

I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water 

Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a 

resolution duly adopted on the 15
th

 day of December 2014. 

 
Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors, this ____ day of December, 2014. 

 
 
 
 __________________________________ 

       David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
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EXHIBIT 6-B

YEAR CAPACITY FEE

1985 $10,623.20

1985-86 $11,133.00

1986-87 $11,433.59

1987-88 $11,890.93

1988-89 $12,295.22

1989-90 $12,983.75

1990-91 $13,529.07

1991-92 $14,056.70

1992-93 $14,661.00

1993-94 $15,202.00

1994-95 $15,325.00

1995-96 $15,692.00

1996-97 $15,960.00

1997-98 $16,551.00

1998-99 $17,048.00

1999-2000 $17,832.00

2000-01 $18,492.00

2001-02 $19,565.00

2002-03 $19,976.00

2003-04 $20,415.00

2004-05 $20,517.00

2005-06 $20,948.00

2006-07 $21,618.00

2007-08 $22,331.00

2008-09 $22,979.00

2009-10 $23,163.00

2010-11 $23,567.00

2011-12 $24,227.00

2012-13 $24,735.00

2013-14 $25,328.00

2014-15 $26,037.00

TABLE 3: CAPACITY FEE HISTORY
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ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

7. RECEIVE ALTERNATIVE MEASUREMENT METHOD REPORT FOR 

DETERMINING ANNUAL COSTS FOR POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 

Meeting Date: December 8, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  In July 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued 

Statement Nos. 43 & 45, establishing financial reporting requirement for post-employment 

benefits other than pensions.  The District currently provides health insurance benefits as a post-

employment benefit and has complied with GASB 43 & 45 requirements by including current 

and future cost information in its financial statements beginning with Fiscal Year 2009-10.  At its 

June 23, 2014 Board meeting, the Board adopted FY 2014-2015 budget which included 

expenditure of funds to contract with the actuarial firm Milliman to compile the required data 

using the alternative measurement report method as discussed in this report below.  Milliman has 

completed the report and is enclosed as Exhibit 7-A.   

 

As the table in Section 4, page 7 in the document indicates, the “Actuarial Accrued Liability” as 

of June 30, 2014 was $2,666,140, all of which remains unfunded.  Using a discount rate of 5.0%, 

the report shows that the “Annual Required Contribution” of $250,635 to fully fund the current 

and future costs over the amortization period of 26 years.  In FY 2013-2014, the District paid 

premium contributions for medical coverage for five retirees and two surviving spouse of 

retiree’s at a cost of $63,724.  This actual cost would be deducted from any contribution made 

that year.  For example, if the District had fully funded its contribution in FY 2013-2014, the 

$63,724 would have been deducted from the $250,679 resulting in a net contribution of 

$186,955.  It should be noted that both current and future costs must be recalculated on an annual 

basis based on then current employee data and District benefit levels, so the contribution 

amounts may vary somewhat each subsequent year.  The District can elect to either partially 

fund, fully fund or continue to fund the costs on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The District in the past 

has chosen to fund the costs on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District’s annual budget includes the 

amount of current retiree medical costs. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends that the Board receive the Alternative 

Measurement Method Report prepared by Milliman, continue to pay retiree medical costs on a 

pay-as-you-go basis. 

  



BACKGROUND:  In July 2004, GASB issued Statement Nos. 43 & 45, establishing financial 

reporting requirements for post-employment benefits other than pensions.  The District provides 

health insurance as a post-employment benefit and is required to comply with GASB 43 & 45 

and include the required information in its audited financial statements beginning in FY 2009-10.  

The main thrust of GASB 43 & 45 is to require that public-sector employees recognize the cost 

of other post-employment benefits over the service life of their employees rather than on a pay-

as-you-go basis.  While the liability amount must be included in each entities annual audited 

financial statements, the GASB statements do not require that the amount actually be funded. 

Government entities can either partially fund, fully fund or continue to fund the costs on a pay-

as-you-go basis.  Entities with less than 100 employees are allowed to use a simplified approach 

to GASB 43 & 45 calculations called the alternative measurement method rather than having a 

full actuarial evaluation.  This method allows small entities such as the District to comply with 

GASB 43 & 45 at a fraction of the cost of a full actuarial evaluation by using an on-line 

computer program to calculate the liability.  At its June 23, 2014 Board meeting, the Board 

adopted FY 2014-2015 budget which included expenditure of funds to contract with the actuarial 

firm Milliman to prepare the data using the alternative measurement report. 

 

EXHIBIT 

7-A GASBhelp Financial Report 
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ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

8. REVIEW AND ACCEPT INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2013-2014 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:  

 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Drafts of the Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report (Report) 

and Board Communication Letter (required communication letter from the Auditors to the 

Board) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 have been received from the District’s auditors, 

Hayashi & Wayland.  The audit documents will also be posted on the District’s website after it 

has been accepted by the Board.  Hayashi & Wayland has been the District auditors since 1989.  

 

The auditors have issued a clean opinion on the District’s financial statements.  The audit did not 

identify any deficiencies in the internal control that the auditors consider to be material 

weaknesses.  The Administrative Committee met with representatives from Hayashi and 

Wayland and reviewed the Auditors’ Report and the Board Communication Letter at its 

December 8, 2014 meeting. 

 

A Management Letter may be issued in conjunction with the Report to offer constructive 

suggestions for improvements on matters that came to the auditors’ attention in connection with 

the audit, however, such letter was not deemed necessary by Hayashi & Wayland in connection 

with the audit for this fiscal year. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends that the Board review and accept the 

Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ending June 30, 2014.  The 

Administrative Committee reviewed draft report on December 8, 2014 and voted 3 to 0 to 

recommend approval of the staff recommendation.  

 

EXHIBITS 

8-A Financial Statement for FY 2013-2014 and Independent Auditors’ Report  

8-B Board Communication Letter 

 
 
 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2014\20141215\ConsentClndr\08\item8.docx 



 
 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 

AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

EXHIBIT 8-A





 
 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 Page 

Board of Directors 1 

Independent Auditors’ Report 2 – 3 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4 – 11 

Basic Financial Statements: 
  Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
    Statement of Net Position 12 
    Statement of Activities 13 
  Fund Financial Statements: 
    Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 14 
    Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – 
      Governmental Funds 15 
    Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
      in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 16 
    Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Fund 17 
    Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Fund 18 
    Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Fund 19 – 20 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 21 – 42 

Required Supplementary Information: 
  Schedule of Funding Progress of Other Post Employment Benefits 43 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, 
    Budget and Actual – Water Supply 44 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, 
    Budget and Actual – Conservation 45 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, 
    Budget and Actual – Mitigation 46 
  Notes to Required Supplementary Information 47 
 
 
 

(i) 





 
 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 

June 30, 2014 
 
 
 
 Member Office Representative 
 
 David Potter Chair Monterey County 
   Board of Supervisors 
 
 David Pendergrass Director Mayoral Representative 
  
 Brenda Lewis Director Division 1 
 
 Bill Thayer Vice-Chair Division 2 
 
 Kristi Markey Director Division 3 
 
 Jeanne Byrne Director Division 4 
 
 Robert S. Brower Director Division 5 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 





 
 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Monterey, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and 
each major fund of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express our opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We did not audit the financial statements of the CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation 
Project (the proprietary fund) which statements reflect 78% of the total assets (See Note 2).  
Those statements were audited by Marcello & Company whose report has been furnished to 
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the proprietary fund, is 
based solely on the report of Marcello & Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the State Controller’s 
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type activities and 
each major fund of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District as of June 30, 2014, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state 
regulations governing special districts. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11, the Schedule of Funding 
Progress of Other Post Employee Benefits on page 43 and the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
on pages 44–47 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
 
_______________[date] 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
This section of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District’s (the District) annual financial report 
presents a discussion and analysis of the District’s performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  
Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section. 
 
The District was created by the California Legislature in 1977 and ratified by local voters in 1978. The 
District has four primary responsibilities. The first is to augment and manage development of potable water 
supplies and the delivery of this water to users in the Monterey Peninsula area. The second is to promote 
water conservation. The third is to promote water reuse and reclamation of storm and waste water. The 
fourth is to protect the environmental quality of the Monterey Peninsula area’s water resources, including 
the protection of instream fish and wildlife resources. 
 
The District is also a participant in the CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project (the Project), which 
is a cooperative effort that also involves the Carmel Area Wastewater District, the Pebble Beach 
Community Services District and the Pebble Beach Company. The cooperative effort did not create a new 
or separate legal entity. Therefore, the Project is included as a Proprietary (Enterprise) Fund of the District, 
the issuer of the Certificates of Participation which financed the project. The Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis for this Proprietary Fund is included in separate financial statements of the Project audited by 
Marcello & Company and, therefore, there is no further discussion of that fund in this report. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The assets of the governmental activities of the District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the 
year ending June 30, 2014 by $5.2 million (net position).  However, $3.7 million is invested in capital 
assets-net of related debt.   

• The District’s total governmental activities net position decreased by approximately $1.5 million for 
the year ended June 30, 2014.  The decrease in net position can mostly be attributed to the 
groundwater replenishment project, capital outlay and capitalized project expenditures. 
Depreciation expenses for the year were $279,774.   

• Capital outlay and capitalized project expenditures of $398,614 consisted mostly of funds expended 
to construct an additional injection well for the District’s Aquifer Storage & Recovery Project, 
alternate desalination project, local water projects, vehicle purchase, building carpet installation, 
and routine computer equipment upgrades.   

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This financial report consists of four parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, the notes to the basic financial statements, and required supplementary information.   
 
The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the District’s financial 
status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by required supplementary 
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
The District’s financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. Under this basis 
of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized in 
the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the Statement of 
Activities. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are included in the 
Statement of Net Position.   
 
Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business.   
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or 
deteriorating. The Statement of Net Position combines and consolidates governmental funds’ current 
financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations.   
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for 
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes).   
 
The government-wide financial statements include all the governmental activities of the District. The 
governmental activities of the District include conservation, mitigation and water supply. The business-type 
activity includes the water reclamation project.   
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report.   
 
Fund Financial Statements – A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The fund financial statements 
provide detail information about the most significant funds, not the District as a whole. The District, like 
other special districts, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. The District’s funds are segregated into two categories: governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. Fund financial statements report essentially the same functions as those reported in the 
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, fund 
financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances 
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.   
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
Governmental Funds – The District’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash 
and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide 
a detailed short-term view of the District’s general government operations and the basic services it 
provides. Governmental fund information helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s projects. Because the focus of the 
governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental 
fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and government-wide statements.   
 
The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the Water 
Supply Fund, Conservation Fund, and the Mitigation Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.   
 
Proprietary Fund – The District maintains one type of proprietary fund, the enterprise fund. Proprietary 
funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise funds are used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activity in the government-wide financial statements but provide 
more detail and additional information. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for the 
CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project.   
 
The fund financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 20 of this report.   
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 21 through 42 of this report.   
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GOVERNMENT–WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Net Position 
 
This Statement of Net Position, the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities, is one way to 
measure the District’s financial health or position. Net position is reported in three categories:  Invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt, Restricted and Unrestricted. Unrestricted assets are funds available for 
future operational and capital expenditures. 

 
Summary of Net Position 

  Governmental Activities  
 

  2014   2013  

Assets 
Current Assets $ 7,861,865 $ 8,130,277 
Prepaid Expenses and Deposits  –       36,025 
Capital Assets – Net  5,424,002  5,305,162 

 Total Assets  13,285,867  13,471,464 
 
 
Liabilities 
Current Liabilities  2,465,142  1,296,323 
Long-Term Liabilities  5,581,118  5,432,937 
 
 Total Liabilities  8,046,260  6,729,260 
 
 
Net Position 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of 
  Related Debt  3,703,618  3,825,773 
Restricted   219,136  219,136 
Unrestricted  1,316,853  2,697,295 
 
 Total Net Position $ 5,239,607 $ 6,742,204 

 
The District’s assets exceeded its liabilities by approximately $5.2 million at the end of the current year, 
which is a decrease of approximately 22.3% since June 30, 2013.   
 
The activities decreased the District’s net position by approximately $1.5 million during the current year, 
due primarily to increased payables as follows:  
 

• Groundwater replenishment project 
• Local water supply project 
• Various other payables 

 
In FY 2012-2013, the District replaced the lost User Fee revenue with Water Supply Charge revenue derived 
from individual property owners and Mitigation Program revenue derived from Cal-Am ratepayers.   
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GOVERNMENT–WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
Change in Net Position 
 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental Activities 

 
  2014   2013  
Revenues: 
Program Revenue: 
  Charges for Services $ 9,044,326 $ 8,159,383 
  Operating Grants  602,499  391,797 
General Revenues: 
  Property Taxes  1,582,796  1,690,645 
  Investment Income  20,042  11,524 
  Miscellaneous  56,653  62,211 

 
 Total Revenues  11,306,316  10,315,560 

 
Expenses: 
Conservation  2,269,696  1,459,231 
Mitigation  2,463,838  2,284,450 
Water Supply  8,075,379  4,191,428 
Transfer of Capital Assets  –       2,147,054 

 
 Total Expenses  12,808,913  10,082,163 

 
Change in Net Position  (1,502,597)  233,397 

 
Net Position - Beginning of Year  6,742,204  6,508,807 

 
Net Position - End of Year $ 5,239,607 $ 6,742,204 

 
In fiscal year 2012-2013, the District replaced part of the lost User Fee revenue with Mitigation Program 
revenue derived from Cal-Am ratepayers. The remainder of the lost revenue was replaced with Water 
Supply Charge in FY 2012-2013. Governmental activities decreased the District’s net assets by 
approximately $1.5 million.  Key elements resulting in the net increase are as follows: 
 

• Project expenditures of about $8.2 million, consisting mainly of constructing an additional well for 
the Aquifer Storage & Recovery Project, groundwater replenishment project, alternate desalination 
project, local water supply project, and various minor project expenditures contributed to the 
increase.   

 
• Capital outlay of approximately $107,000, mostly for a vehicle purchase, building carpet installation, 

and routine computer equipment upgrades, added to the increase.   
 

• Depreciation expense of approximately $280,000 offset a portion of the increase.   
 
 

8 



 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION   
 
Capital Assets  
 
The District’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2014 totaled $5,424,002 as shown 
below.  This amount represents a net increase, including additions and disposals, net of depreciation, of 
approximately $118,000 or 2.2% from June 30, 2013.   
 

Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

 
  2014   2013  

 
Office Equipment $ 3,613 $ 5,621 
Computer Equipment  361,070  384,666 
Transportation Equipment  32,218  16,260 
Project Equipment  6,833  7,667 
Building and Improvements  1,238,868  1,254,989 
ASR Facilities  3,773,036  3,623,950 
Fish Rearing Facility  8,364  12,009 

 
 Total $ 5,424,002 $ 5,305,162 

 
Debt Administration 
 
The District has an installment purchase agreement with a balance of $3,886,417 at June 30, 2014.  
Retirements were made in the amount of $75,215. 
 
The balance of the District’s debt, other than the liabilities for compensated absences and other post 
employment benefits is related to the CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project. As mentioned 
earlier, the Management’s Discussion and Analysis for this Proprietary Fund is included in separate financial 
statements of the Project audited by Marcello & Company and, therefore, there is no further discussion of 
that fund in this report.   
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing 
requirements.   
 
The Water Supply Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. It accounts for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  This fund accounts for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition of or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
Proprietary Funds and Special Assessments). 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenue sources for which expenditures are 
restricted by law or regulation to finance particular activities of the District. The Conservation Fund 
accounts for financial resources used to fund water conservation activities mandated by District legislation 
including permit issuance and enforcement, jurisdictional water allocations, and public water conservation 
education. This includes the Toilet Replacement Refund Program, which decreases water demand on the 
Carmel River. The Mitigation Fund accounts for financial resources used to finance work along the Carmel 
River carried out pursuant to the Mitigation Program designed to ameliorate impacts identified in the 
District’s Allocation Program Environmental Impact Report.   
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a total fund balance of 
$5,310,783. The Water Supply Fund has a fund balance of $3,892,112, the Conservation Fund has a fund 
balance of $1,086,698 and the Mitigation Fund has a fund balance of $331,973.   
 
During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the District’s Water Supply Fund decreased $2,168,206, 
the Conservation Fund increased $404,928 and the Mitigation Fund increased $301,004. The increases in 
the Conservation Fund and the Mitigation Fund are due to revenues and other financing sources exceeding 
expenditures primarily due to deferment of some expenditures to next fiscal year. In FY 2012-2013, the 
District replaced the lost User Fee revenue with Water Supply Charge revenue derived from individual 
property owners and Mitigation Program revenue derived from Cal-Am ratepayers. 
 
 
BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS/VARIANCES 
 
The District’s original budget of $15.3 million for expenditures was modified to $16.1 during the mid-year 
budget process. The increase was attributable to project expenditures, mostly related to groundwater 
replenishment project. Most of the increase in project expenditures was covered from previously 
accumulated fund balances. 
 
The District’s budget projected operating revenues of $12.7 million. The District finished the budget year 
with operating revenues of $11.3 million, which was $1.3 million or 10.6% less than budgeted. The 
difference was mostly attributable to project reimbursements being approximately $1.4 million under 
budget.   
 
Actual operating expenditures totaled $12.8 million compared to the budget amount of $16.1 million, or 
20.4% less than budgeted.  The difference is primarily due to project expenditures being approximately $3 
million less than the budgeted amount. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
In developing the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget, the staff and management had to consider a number of 
factors that would impact the District’s economy and finances.  The 2014-2015 budget was developed and 
balanced using previously accumulated fund balance. This was accomplished by sustaining most 
expenditure levels and structuring permit and other processing fees collected by the District to fully recover 
service costs.  The fiscal year 2014-2015 budget assumes continued collection of Water Supply Charge 
revenue derived from individual property owners and Mitigation Program revenue derived from Cal-Am 
ratepayers.   
 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with an 
interest.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be directed to Suresh Prasad, Administrative Services Manager/Chief Financial 
Officer, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, 5 Harris Ct., Bldg. G, Monterey, California 93940. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 
  
 
    Governmental   Business–Type   2014   2013  
    Activities   Activities   Total   Total  
 
ASSETS: 
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,032,749 $ 649,266 $ 1,682,015 $ 780,548 
  Investments  4,696,986  –       4,696,986  5,982,639 
  Receivables, net  1,912,994  591,230  2,504,224  3,108,041 
  Prepaid expenses and deposits  –       –       –       36,025 
  Restricted reserves  219,136  874,410  1,093,546  1,083,629 
  Capital assets, net: 
    Water rights  –       43,910,643  43,910,643  45,306,398 
    Nondepreciable  –       108,486  108,486  8,104 
    Depreciable  5,424,002  –       5,424,002  5,305,162 
 
 Total assets  13,285,867  46,134,035  59,419,902  61,610,546 
 
LIABILITIES: 
  Accounts payable  2,412,850  665,576  3,078,426  3,169,609 
  Accrued liabilities  52,292  –       52,292  86,801 
  Long-term debt: 
    Due within one year  327,296  2,252,000  2,579,296  2,545,786 
    Due in more than one year  5,253,822  22,016,000  27,269,822  29,407,151 
 
 Total liabilities  8,046,260  24,933,576  32,979,836  35,209,347 
 
NET POSITION: 
  Invested in capital assets, net of  
    related debt  3,703,618  24,719,129  28,422,747  22,620,275 
  Restricted for construction project  –       –       –       15,276 
  Restricted for debt service  219,136  1,137  220,273  220,273 
  Restricted for capital replacement  –       873,273  873,273  848,080 
  Unrestricted (deficit)  1,316,853  (4,393,080)  (3,076,227)  2,697,295 
 
 Total net position  $ 5,239,607 $ 21,200,459 $ 26,440,066 $ 26,401,199 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 

  
     Net (Expenses) Revenues      
  Program Revenues   and Changes in Net Position      
          Operating              
       Charges for   Grants and  Governmental  Business–Type   2014   2013  
    Expenses   Services   Contributions   Activities   Activities   Total   Total  
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS: 
  Governmental activities: 
    Conservation $ 2,269,696 $ 1,374,724 $ –      $ (894,972) $ –      $ (894,972) $ (697,241) 
    Mitigation  2,463,838  1,940,728  602,499  79,389  –       79,389  (57,093) 
    Water supply  8,075,379  5,728,874  –       (2,346,505)  –       (2,346,505)  1,370,405 
 Total governmental activities  12,808,913  9,044,326  602,499  (3,162,088)  –       (3,162,088)  616,071 
  Business–type activities – water sales  3,828,941  5,359,496  –       –       1,530,555  1,530,555  741,143 
 Total business–type activities  3,828,941  5,359,496  –       –       1,530,555  1,530,555  741,143 
 Total  $ 16,637,854 $ 14,403,822 $ 602,499  (3,162,088)  1,530,555  (1,631,533)  1,357,214 
GENERAL REVENUES: 
  Taxes         1,582,796  –       1,582,796  1,690,645 
  Investment earnings        20,042  26,185  46,227  13,433 
  Miscellaneous        56,653  –       56,653  62,211 
  Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets        –       –       –       (2,147,054) 
  Special items: 
    Subsidy, Pebble Beach Company        –       –       –       1,600,006 
    Withdrawal, Pebble Beach Company        –       –       –       (1,641,213) 
    Water entitlement sales        –       –       –       253,203 
    Water entitlement (withdrawals)        –       (15,276)  (15,276)  (1,130,000) 
 Total general revenues        1,659,491  10,909  1,670,400  (1,298,769) 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION        (1,502,597)  1,541,464  38,867  58,455 
NET POSITION – BEGINNING OF YEAR        6,742,204  19,658,995  26,401,199  31,862,754 
  Prior period adjustment – prior bond carrying costs reimbursements     –       –       –       (5,520,000) 
NET POSITION – BEGINNING OF YEAR  
  (AS RESTATED)        6,742,204  19,658,995  26,401,199  26,342,754 
NET POSITION – END OF YEAR       $ 5,239,607 $ 21,200,459 $ 26,440,066 $ 26,401,199 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 

  

    Water         2014   2013  
    Supply   Conservation   Mitigation   Total   Total  
ASSETS: 
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 222,493 $ 334,138 $ 476,118 $ 1,032,749 $ 354,747 
  Investments  2,702,568  961,480  1,032,938  4,696,986  5,982,639 
  Receivables, net  618,298  266,804  1,027,892  1,912,994  1,573,755 
  Prepaid expenses and deposits  –       –       –       –       36,025 
  Due from other funds  2,201,211  –       –       2,201,211  2,201,210 
  Restricted reserves  219,136  –       –       219,136  219,136  
 Total assets  5,963,706  1,562,422  2,536,948  10,063,076  10,367,512 
 
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES: 
  Liabilities: 
    Accounts payable  2,054,704  113,368  244,778  2,412,850  1,209,522 
    Accrued liabilities  8,861  12,199  31,232  52,292  86,801 
    Due to other funds  –       285,802  1,915,409  2,201,211  2,201,210 
 Total liabilities  2,063,565  411,369  2,191,419  4,666,353  3,497,533 
  Deferred Inflows –  
    Deferred tax revenue  8,029  64,355  13,556  85,940  96,922 
 Total deferred inflows  8,029  64,355  13,556  85,940  96,922 
  Fund balances: 
    Nonspendable – prepaid expenses  –       –       –       –       36,025 
    Assigned: 
      Insurance/litigation  171,354  11,906  66,740  250,000  250,000 
      Capital equipment  51,966  47,633  145,301  244,900  304,100 
      Flood/drought emergencies  –       –       443,944  443,944  443,944 
    Unassigned  3,668,792  1,027,159  (324,012)  4,371,939  5,738,988 
 Total fund balances  3,892,112  1,086,698  331,973  5,310,783  6,773,057 

 Total liabilities, deferred inflows, 
   and fund balances $ 5,963,706 $ 1,562,422 $ 2,536,948     

Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because: 

 Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds         5,424,002  5,305,162 

 Other assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds       85,940  96,922 

 Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due 
and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported in the funds        (5,581,118)  (5,432,937) 

 
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES       $ 5,239,607 $ 6,742,204 

 
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 
  
    Water         2014   2013  
    Supply   Conservation    Mitigation   Total   Total  

REVENUES: 
  Property taxes $ 333,267 $ 1,100,905 $ 148,624 $ 1,582,796 $ 1,690,645 
  Water supply charge  3,412,207  –       –       3,412,207  3,400,873 
  User fees   –       6,867  87,064  93,931  178,002 
  Connection charges, 
    net of refunds  223,625  –       –       223,625  115,972 
  Permit fees  –       175,023  65,056  240,079  277,956 
  Project reimbursements  2,093,013  1,190,653  –       3,283,666  2,562,195 
  Investment income  12,799  3,713  3,530  20,042  11,524 
  Legal fee reimbursements  –       18,441  –       18,441  32,756 
  Recording fees  –       15,061  –       15,061  13,785 
  Mitigation revenue  –       –       1,801,800  1,801,800  1,637,984 
  Miscellaneous  16,010  –       7,141  23,151  15,670 
  Grants   –       –       602,499  602,499  391,797 

 Total revenues  6,090,921  2,510,663  2,715,714  11,317,298  10,329,159 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
  Personnel: 
    Salaries   768,299  449,925  1,033,767  2,251,991  2,169,046 
    Employee benefits and other 
      personnel  321,168  240,948  463,526  1,025,642  1,067,786 
  Services and supplies: 
    Project expenditures  6,465,907  1,182,125  556,364  8,204,396  3,243,178 
    Operating expenditures  143,720  147,578  230,029  521,327  377,214 
    Professional fees  304,978  62,765  81,997  449,740  508,795 
  Capital outlay  35,919  22,394  49,027  107,340  53,145 
  Debt service: 
    Principal   75,215  –       –       75,215  38,368 
    Interest and other charges  143,921  –       –       143,921  67,801 

 Total expenditures  8,259,127  2,105,735  2,414,710  12,779,572  7,525,333 
 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
  REVENUES OVER  
  EXPENDITURES  (2,168,206)  404,928  301,004  (1,462,274)  2,803,826 
 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) –  
  Loan proceeds  –       –       –       –       4,000,000 
 
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES  (2,168,206)  404,928  301,004  (1,462,274)  6,803,826 
 
FUND BALANCES – BEGINNING OF YEAR  6,060,318  681,770  30,969  6,773,057  (30,769) 
 
FUND BALANCES – END OF YEAR $ 3,892,112 $ 1,086,698 $ 331,973 $ 5,310,783 $ 6,733,057 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
  
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (1,462,274) 
 
Amounts reported in the Statement of Activities are 

different because: 
 
  Governmental funds report capital outlays as 

expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current 
period these amounts are:  118,840 

 
 Capitalized project expenditures $ 291,274 
 Capital outlay $ 107,340 
 Depreciation expense $ (279,774) 
 
  Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not 

provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenue in the funds.  (10,982) 

 
  The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial 

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment 
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current 
financial resources of governmental funds.  However, 
neither transaction has any effect on net position.  In the 
current period these amounts are:  75,215 

 
 Principal payments on long-term debt $ 75,215 
 
  Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do 

not require the use of current financial resources and 
therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds:  (223,396) 

 
 Compensated absences $ (36,441) 
 OPEB costs $ (186,955)   
 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ (1,502,597) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUND 
(CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROJECT) 

JUNE 30, 2014 
(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 

  
 
    2014   2013  
 
ASSETS: 
  Cash and investments $ 649,266 $ 425,801 
  Accounts receivable: 
    Water sales  577,074  1,518,948 
    Other   14,156  15,338 
  Cash restricted for: 
    Construction project  –       15,276 
    Debt service  1,137  1,137 
    Capital replacements  873,273  848,080 
  Capital assets, net: 
    Water resale rights  43,910,643  45,306,398 
    Construction-in-progress  108,486  8,104 
 
 Total assets  46,134,035  48,139,082 
 
LIABILITIES: 
  Accounts payable: 
    Pebble Beach Company  –       1,641,213 
    Trade   40,109  15,758 
    Affiliates   625,467  303,116 
  Due to Pebble Beach Company: 
    Due within one year  552,000  552,000 
    Due in more than one year  4,416,000  4,968,000 
  Certificates of participation: 
    Due within one year  1,700,000  1,700,000 
    Due in more than one year  17,600,000  19,300,000 
 
 Total liabilities  24,933,576  28,480,087 
 
NET POSITION: 
  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  24,719,129  24,314,502 
  Restricted for debt service  1,137  1,137 
  Restricted for construction project  –       15,276 
  Restricted for capital replacements  873,273  848,080 
  Unrestricted  (4,393,080)  (5,520,000) 
 
 Total net position $ 21,200,459 $ 19,658,995 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUND 
(CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROJECT) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 

  
 
    2014   2013  
 
OPERATING REVENUES –  
  Water sales $ 5,359,496 $ 4,175,379 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
  Plant costs  1,552,973  1,335,664 
  Distribution costs  253,426  335,440 
  General and administration  150,140  94,950 
  Potable water  4,188  4,259 
  Amortization  1,585,572  1,580,827 

 Total operating expenses  3,546,299  3,351,140 

  Operating income (loss)  1,813,197  824,239 

NON–OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
  PBCo subsidy  –       1,600,006 
  PBCo (withdrawal)  –       (1,641,213) 
  Water entitlement sales  –       253,203 
  Water entitlement (withdrawals)  (15,276)  (1,130,000) 
  Investment earnings  26,185  1,909 
  Bank charges  (325)  (333) 
  Bond carrying costs  (234,629)  (47,455) 
  Interest expense – COP  (47,688)  (35,308) 

 Total non-operating revenue (expenses)  (271,733)  (999,191) 
 
CHANGE IN NET POSITION  1,541,464  (174,952) 

NET POSITION – BEGINNING OF YEAR  19,658,995  25,353,947 

Prior Period Adjustment – prior bond carrying costs liability  –       (5,520,000) 

NET POSITION – BEGINNING AS RESTATED  19,658,995  19,833,947 

NET POSITION – END OF YEAR $ 21,200,459 $ 19,658,995 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUND 
(CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROJECT) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2013) 

  
 
    2014   2013  
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
  Cash received from customers $ 6,302,552 $ 3,152,557 
  Cash payments for operating expenses  (1,614,025)  (2,143,453) 
 
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
    OPERATING ACTIVITIES  4,688,527  1,009,104 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED  
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES:   
    Cash received from operating subsidy  –       1,600,006 
    Cash received from water entitlement sales  –       253,203 
    Cash paid out – water entitlement (withdrawals)  (15,276)  (1,130,000) 
    Payment to PBCo-advance reimbursements  (1,641,213)  –      
    Water resale rights – capital additions  (290,199)  (82,866) 
    Bond carrying and interest expenses  (282,642)  (82,763) 
    Principal paid on PBCo debt  (552,000)  –      
    Principal payments on certificates of participation  (1,700,000)  (1,600,000) 
 
  NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL 
    AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (4,481,330)  (1,042,420) 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES –  
  Investment earnings  26,185  1,576 
 
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING 
    ACTIVITIES  26,185  1,576 
 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
  INVESTMENTS  233,382  (31,740) 
 
CASH AND INVESTMENTS, 
  BEGINNING OF YEAR  1,290,294  1,322,034 
 
CASH AND INVESTMENTS, 
  END OF YEAR $ 1,523,676 $ 1,290,294 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUND 
(CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROJECT) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
(WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2012) 

(Continued) 
  
 
    2014   2013  
 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME  
  TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
  ACTIVITIES: 
    Operating income $ 1,813,197 $ 824,239 
    Adjustments to reconcile net operating income 
      to net cash provided by operating activities: 
        Amortization  1,585,572  1,580,827 
        (Increase) decrease in: 
          Receivables  943,056  (1,022,822) 
          Prepaid expenses  –       21,061 
        Increase (decrease) in –  
          Accounts payable  346,702  (394,201) 
 
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
    OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 4,688,527 $ 1,009,104 
 
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH 
  INVESTMENTS TO THE STATEMENT OF 
  NET POSITION:   
    Cash and investments $ 649,266 $ 425,801 
    Restricted cash  874,410  864,493 
 
 Total  $ 1,523,676 $ 1,290,294 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

  
 
 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
  Abbreviations Used:   
 
  CAW California–American Water Company 
  CAWD Carmel Area Wastewater District 
  COP Certificates of participation 
  O&M Operations and maintenance 
  PBCo. Pebble Beach Company 
  PBCSD Pebble Beach Community Services District 
  Project CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project 
 
  Description of the Reporting Entity:   
 
  The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District was created by Chapter 527, Statutes of 

1977 (Assembly Bill No. 1329) of the California Legislature, on September 2, 1977. The District 
was created to provide integrated management of ground and surface water supplies, and to 
exercise regulatory control over the collection, storage, distribution, and delivery of water and 
wastewater within its jurisdiction including, but not limited to, such functions as management 
and regulation of the use, reuse, reclamation and conservation of water, and bond financing of 
public works projects. Water service is principally supplied by other entities, but the District has 
the power to acquire public or private water systems. The District also has the power to levy 
and collect real estate taxes. Operations were commenced during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 1978.   

 
  The District has a seven-member board of directors. Five directors are elected every four years 

on a staggered basis. Of the other two directors, one must be a member of the Monterey 
County Board of Supervisors and the other must be a chief executive officer, mayor, or member 
of the governing body of a city member unit. The Board of Directors has continuing oversight 
responsibility for the District.   

 
  The geographic jurisdiction of the District approximates the Monterey Peninsula and the 

Carmel River watershed including all of the cities (except Marina) and the unincorporated 
communities therein.   

 
  The accompanying financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the 
more significant accounting policies used by the District:   
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
  Basis of Presentation and Accounting:   
 
  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements – The basic financial statements include both 

government-wide and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements 
(i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of 
the activities of the District.   

 
  The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct 

expenses of a functional category (Conservation, Mitigation or Water Supply) or identifiable 
activity are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given function or activity, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational requirements of a particular function or activity, and 3) grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or activity.  
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues.   

 
  The net cost (by function) is normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, 

intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).   
 
  Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds. The District has 

one proprietary fund. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. The major governmental funds are the water supply, 
conservation, and mitigation fund. The District has no non-major funds.   

 
  The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the 

change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus 
of the fund financial statements is on the major individual funds. Each presentation provides 
valuable information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the 
information.   

 
  Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting – The government-wide financial statements are 

reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the 
year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as 
all eligibility requirements have been met.   

 
  Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period.   
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
  Property taxes that have been levied and are due on or before year-end are recognized as 

revenue if they have been collected within sixty days after year-end. Water supply charges due 
for the current year are considered available and are, therefore, recognized as revenues even 
though a portion of the user fees may be collected in the subsequent year. Connection charges 
and permit fees are considered to be measurable when they have been collected and are 
recognized as revenue at that time. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are 
measurable and available.   

 
  Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  

However, debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, 
are recognized only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other 
financing sources. 

 
  Proprietary fund level financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.   

 
  Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from producing and delivering water. 
Operating expenses include the cost of sales, general and administrative expenses, and 
amortization of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenue comes from sales of 
reclaimed water.  Other revenue comes primarily from the subsidy by PBCo. and from sales of 
water entitlements. 

 
  The following major funds are used by the District: 
 
  Governmental Funds: 
 
  The following is a description of the Governmental Funds of the District: 
 

a. Conservation Fund, accounts for financial resources used to fund water 
conservation activities mandated by District legislation including permit issuance 
and enforcement, jurisdictional water allocations, and public water conservation 
education. This includes the Toilet Replacement Refund Program which 
decreases water demand on the Carmel River.   

 
b. Mitigation Fund, accounts for financial resources used to finance work along the 

Carmel River carried out pursuant to the Mitigation Program designed to 
ameliorate impacts identified in the District’s Allocation Program Environmental 
Impact Report.  

 
c. Water Supply Fund, accounts for financial resources used to fund for acquisition 

or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
Proprietary Funds, and Special Assessments), support for staff relative to water 
supply, and other water supply related activities.   
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
 
  Proprietary Fund:   
 
  The following is a description of the Proprietary Fund of the District:   
 

  Enterprise Fund, accounts for the activity of the CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation 
Project.   

 
  Cash Equivalents – The District considers all highly liquid assets which have a term of less than 

ninety days to maturity as cash equivalents.   
 
  Restricted Assets – Certain cash and investments of the Reclamation Project are classified as 

restricted because their uses are limited by commitments made by the Project to the 
purchasers of the Certificates of Participation. Construction project cash is in an escrowed 
account for receipt of water entitlement sales by PBCo., who is entitled to reimbursements for 
its cash advances for phase II construction costs. Certain cash and investments of the District 
are classified as restricted because their uses are limited by commitments made by the District 
to the purchaser of the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project.   

 
  Pooled Cash – Cash accounts (Reclamation) which essentially operate as demand deposit 

accounts are maintained by the Monterey County Treasurer’s Office. Available cash balances 
are controlled and invested by the County Treasurer in pooled investment funds in order to 
provide safety, liquidity and high investment returns for all funds.  Interest earnings from these 
funds are generally credited to the District’s account on a quarterly basis.   

 
  The Monterey County Treasurer’s Investment policy is in compliance with Section 53635 of the 

Government Code of the State of California which permits investments in certain securities and 
participation in certain investment trading techniques or strategies.   

 
  Investments – Resolution 83-17, adopted September 12, 1983, authorized investment of the 

District’s monies with the State Treasurer for deposit in the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF). Money in the fund is invested by the State Treasurer to realize the maximum return 
consistent with prudent treasury management. All earnings of the fund, less a reimbursement 
of management costs incurred not to exceed one quarter of one percent of earnings, are 
distributed to the contributing agencies in their relative shares each quarter. The balances of 
funds in LAIF are stated at market value. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
  The types of investments the District may purchase are not limited by legal or contractual 

provisions, but the Board has established policies on investments and has so directed their 
investment managers.   

 
The Project does not have a specific investment policy but generally follows the guidelines of 
the County of Monterey’s Investment Policy. All funds invested are managed to meet the 
guidelines stated in both California Code Section 53600, et. seq. and the County’s investment 
policy. 

 
 Receivables and Deferred Inflows of Resources – Receivables are amounts due representing 

revenues earned or accrued in the current period. Receivables which have not been remitted 
within 60 days subsequent to year end are offset by deferred inflows of resources, and 
accordingly have not been recorded as revenue in the governmental fund. When the revenue 
becomes available, the revenue is recognized in the governmental fund. Deferred inflows are 
detailed on the Balance Sheet.   

 
 All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an 

allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance is based on an assessment of the current 
status of individual accounts. At June 30, 2014, the allowance was estimated to be zero. 

 
  Prepaid Expenses – Prepaid expenses are capitalized and amortized ratably over the period of 

benefit.   
 
  Capital Assets – Property, facilities, and equipment purchased or acquired is carried at 

historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the time received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with 
an estimated useful life in excess of one year and an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 
for equipment and $5,000 for land, facilities, and improvements.   

 
  Property, facilities, and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight-line method 

over the following estimated useful lives:  
 
 Equipment 3 to 20 Years 
 Building and improvements 5 to 39 Years 
 Monitoring stations 5 to 10 Years 
 ASR facilities 30 to 40 Years 
 Fish rearing facility 5 to 40 Years 
 Leasehold improvements 10 to 40 Years 
 
  Water Resale Rights – Proceeds from the issuance of the Certificates of Participation were used 

to construct facilities for wastewater reclamation and distribution. The District does not own 
these facilities, but instead owns the rights to the reclaimed water for resale. The Project 
capitalizes the costs incurred in order to obtain these water rights in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles for intangible assets. As a result, capital outlay and construction 
period interest incurred have been capitalized into this account. These rights are presented net 
of accumulated amortization.   

 
  Amortization – The water resale rights are amortized using the straight-line method over the 

expected useful life of the reclamation plant which is forty years.   
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
  Compensated Absences – The District accrues vested liabilities for vacation and sick pay.  

Permanent employees are vested after one year of full-time employment.   
 
  Tier 1 – Employees hired before July 2013. 
 
  Vacation accrues at the rate of 10 days per year for the first year of employment, 15 days per 

year for two to five years of employment, 20 days per year for six to fifteen years of 
employment, and 22 days per year after fifteen years. Total accruals are limited to 60 days 
vacation per employee.  Sick leave accrues at the rate of 12 days each year.  After an employee 
leaves District employment, they are paid up to 75 days of accrued sick leave.   

 
  Tier 2 – Employees hired after July 2013. 
 
  Vacation accrues at the rate of 10 days per year for the first to three years of employment, 15 

days per year for four to eight years of employment, and 20 days per year after eight years of 
employment. Total accruals are limited to 45 days vacation per employee.  Sick leave accrues at 
the rate of 12 days each year.  After an employee leaves District employment, they are paid up 
to 30 days of accrued sick leave. 

 
  Paid time off is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.  A liability 

for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as 
a result of employee resignations and retirements.   

 
  Due To/From Other Funds – During the course of operations, transactions occur between 

individual funds that result in amounts owed between funds, which are classified as “due 
to/from other funds.” Eliminations have been made on the government-wide statements for 
amounts due to/from within the governmental funds. 

 
  Long-Term Obligations – In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and 

other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities.  
Debt premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the 
straight-line method. Debt payable are reported net of the applicable debt premium or 
discount.  Debt issuance costs are recognized in the current period. 

 
  In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and 

discounts, as well as debt issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financial sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported 
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance are reported as other financing 
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures.   

 
  Long-term liabilities of all Proprietary Funds, including any general obligation bonds to be 

repaid by those funds, are accounted for in the respective funds.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26 



 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Net Position – The Statement of Net Position presents the Districts assets and liabilities with 
the difference reported as net position.  Net position is reported in three categories. 
 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any related debt 
obligations attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets.   

 
• Restricted results when constraints placed on net positions use are either externally 

imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At 
the present time there are no such restrictions.   

 
• Unrestricted consists of net position not meeting the definition of the two preceding 

categories. Unrestricted net position often has constraints on resources imposed by 
management which can be removed or modified.   

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy 
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.   

 
  Fund Balances – Fund balance classifications are based primarily on the extent to which the 

District is bound to honor constraints on the use of resources reported in each governmental 
fund. 

 
 The District reports the following classifications: 
 

• Nonspendable – Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form, such as prepaid expenses and long term 
receivables or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as a trust 
that must be retained in perpetuity. 

 
• Restricted – Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints placed on the use of 

resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 

 
• Committed – Committed fund balances are amounts that can only be used for specific 

purposes as a result of constraints imposed by the Board.  Committed amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the Board removes those constraints by taking some 
type of action (passage of a resolution). Amounts in the committed fund balance 
classification may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the Board.  
Committed fund balances differ from restricted balances because the constraints on their 
use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
• Assigned – Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the District’s 

intent to be used for specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is 
express by (a) the General Manager or (b) the Board. The Board has the authority to 
remove or change the assignment of the funds with a simple majority vote. 

 
• Unassigned – This fund balance is the residual classification. It is also used to report 

negative fund balances in other governmental funds.  
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 When restricted and other fund balance resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy 

to use restricted resources first, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned amounts, 
respectively.  

 
  The Board has not yet established a formal policy for defining funds as committed or assigned.  

Until a formal policy is adopted, funds which were previously presented as unreserved, 
designated are being presented as assigned.  All other funds which do not meet the definition 
of non-spendable or restricted are presented as unassigned.   

 
  Property Taxes – The County is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment 

of property taxes for all taxing jurisdictions, including the District. Secured property taxes for 
each year ended June 30 are payable in equal installments, November 1 and February 1, and 
become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is January 1 of 
each year.  Property taxes are accounted for as collected and remitted by the County in the 
Governmental Funds.  Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the January 1 lien date 
and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.   

 
The term “Unsecured” refers to taxes on personal property other than land and buildings. 
These taxes are secured by liens on the property being taxed. 

 
Property tax revenues are recorded in governmental funds as receivables and deferred 
revenues at the time the tax levy is billed. Current year revenues are those collected within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities, generally within sixty days of 
year-end. No allowance is provided for delinquent taxes as the lien is considered an enforceable 
legal obligation. 

 
Under the provisions of Proposition 1A and as part of the 2009–10 budget package passed by 
the California state legislature on July 28, 2009, the State of California borrowed 8% of the 
amount of property tax revenue, including those property taxes associated with in-lieu motor 
vehicle license fee, the triple flip in lieu sales tax, and supplemental property tax, apportioned 
to cities, counties and special districts (excluding redevelopment agencies). The state was 
required to repay their borrowing plus interest by June 30, 2013. After repayment of this initial 
borrowing, the California legislature may consider only one additional borrowing within a ten-
year period. The amount of this borrowing pertaining to the District was $110,521.   

 
This borrowing by the State of California was recognized as a receivable in the accompanying 
financial statements. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, the borrowed tax 
revenues were not permitted to be recognized as revenue in the governmental fund financial 
statements, until the tax revenues were received from the State of California (received in fiscal 
year 2012–13). In the government-wide financial statements, the tax revenues were recognized 
in the fiscal year for which they were levied (fiscal year 2009–10).   

 
  Permit Fees – Permit fee revenue is recorded as permits are issued.  The District is required to 

refund permit fees if the permit is not used or to grant an extension of time upon a reasonable 
request.  If a refund is issued, the refunded party also relinquishes any water rights associated 
with the permit.  It is the District’s policy to record such refunds as they become payable.    
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
  Income Taxes – Monterey Peninsula Water Management District is a California local 

governmental unit and is exempt from both Federal and State income taxes.   
 
  Use of Estimates – The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.   

 
  Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial 

statements to conform to the current year presentation.   
 

Comparative Financial Information – The financial statements include certain prior-year 
summarized comparative information in total but not by activities or fund. Such information 
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction 
with the District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013, from which the 
summarized information was derived. 

 
Subsequent Events – Subsequent events have been evaluated through __________[date], 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

 
 
NOTE 2. THE CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROJECT 
 
  The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project (the Project) is a cooperative effort involving the 

District, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD), the Pebble Beach Community Services 
District (PBCSD), and the Pebble Beach Company (PBCo.).  This cooperative effort did not create 
a new or separate legal entity.  Therefore, the Project is a proprietary (enterprise) fund of the 
District, the issuer of the Certificates of Participation which financed the Project’s first 
construction project.   

 
  The statements of the Project were audited by Marcello & Company whose report has been 

furnished to us. 
 
  The Project provides treated wastewater to irrigate golf courses and open space areas in Pebble 

Beach, which freed up potable water previously used for irrigation. The original Project involved 
the construction of a new tertiary treatment plant and laboratory facilities located on the site 
of the existing CAWD secondary wastewater treatment plant, the construction of a new 
reclaimed distribution system, including a 2.5 million gallon storage tank and irrigation system 
improvements.  Construction of the original Project began in January 1993 and was completed 
in October 1994. The Project assets are owned principally by CAWD and PBCSD, and consist 
primarily of the following:  Assets owned by CAWD:  (1) a new tertiary treatment plant, (2) 
secondary process improvements, (3) new laboratory facilities, (4) a reclaimed water pump 
station, (5) related computer equipment and, (6) a small portion of the reclaimed water 
pipeline. Assets owned by PBCSD: (1) approximately seven miles of reclaimed water distribution 
system pipeline, (2) the Forest Lake Reservoir, (3) a 2.5 million gallon storage tank, (4) a potable 
water pump station, and (5) a reclaimed water booster pump station. The tertiary treatment 
plant produces water which meets Title 22 standards specified by the California Department of 
Health Services, which is a quality acceptable for human contact.   

 
 

29 



 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
NOTE 2. THE CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROJECT (Continued) 
 
  The original Project was financed by Certificates of Participation (COP) which were executed 

and delivered at the direction of the District in December 1992 in the amount of $33,900,000.  
The District provided the funds necessary to construct and operate the Project and then 
obtained ownership of the reclaimed water for the purpose of resale. PBCo. guaranteed 
payment of construction costs of the Project as well as any operating deficiencies. The debt 
obligations incurred by the District to finance the project constitute limited obligations of the 
District, payable solely from the net operating revenues generated by the sale of reclaimed 
water produced by the Project and, if such reclaimed water revenues are insufficient, from 
payments on a Bond Letter of Credit provided by Wells Fargo Bank (the credit bank) through a 
reimbursement agreement between PBCo. and the credit bank.  PBCo. pays the letter of credit 
fees, as well as principal and interest payments on debt obligations as needed, as a subsidy to 
the Project.   

 
  As the Project does not own the capital assets, the value earned for the capital expenditures 

incurred is reflected on the books of the Project as water resale rights, an intangible asset.   
 
  The activities of the Project are overseen by a five member management committee containing 

two representatives from the CAWD board, two from the PBCSD board and one from PBCo.   
 
  Subsequent to the completion of the original facilities, the Project has been expanded to 

increase the quantity and quality of reclaimed water. The expanded project utilizes Forest Lake 
Reservoir located in Pebble Beach which provides 115 million gallons of storage capacity. The 
Reservoir is filled with reclaimed water during winter months when there is excess production 
at the treatment plant. The stored water is used during summer months when the daily 
irrigation demand exceeds treatment plant production capacity. PBCSD purchased the 
Reservoir from California-American Water Company in 1998 and rehabilitated to meet State 
Water Resources Division of Safety of Dams requirements. The rehabilitated construction of the 
Reservoir was completed in March 2006.  The construction costs of approximately $13 million 
were financed by the sale of Pebble Beach Company water entitlements.   

 
  The Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis (MF/RO) phase of the project (phase II), located at the 

CAWD plant site, began design in 2006 and construction was completed in 2009. The intent of 
the MF/RO phase is to reduce the sodium content of the tertiary reclaimed water from 150 
mg/l to less than 55 mg/l to reduce the stress on the golf greens and eliminate the need for 
flushing the courses with potable water. The design capacity for the MF/RO is 1.5 million 
gallons with an expected blend of 80% MF/RO water and 20% MF water. The cost of the MF/RO 
phase was approximately $20 million. 

 
  The cost of the Expanded Project was financed through the sale of water entitlements owned 

by PBCo. to residential property owners within the Pebble Beach community, currently at 
$250,000 per acre foot, which is subject to change. At June 30, 2014, approximately $27 million 
had been raised through these sales and interest. The funds from the sales were deposited in a 
restricted escrow account where they were invested in short-term federal government 
securities before being spent for the Expanded Project. All projects costs in excess of those 
raised through the sale of Water Entitlements are paid for by PBCo. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

30 



 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 
NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
  Cash and Cash Equivalents – Balances in cash and cash equivalents consist of bank accounts 

insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or Securities Investment 
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or collateralized by the pledging institution under the California 
Government Code.   

 
  Restricted Reserves – The District has established a reserve fund as required by the installment 

agreement.  The remaining proceeds of the $33,900,000 in Certificates of Participation issued 
for the Project were deposited in various restricted trust and reserve accounts as required by 
the terms of the issuance.   

 
  Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 

failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District has a deposit policy that 
complies with the California Government Code commencing at Section 53630 (Public Deposits).  
As of June 30, 2014, $884,334 of the District’s bank balances of $1,201,469 were exposed to 
custodial credit risk as uninsured and collateralized by the pledging bank’s trust department not 
in the District’s name.   

 
  The difference between bank balances and the carrying amounts (book value) represents 

outstanding checks and deposits in transit.   
 

Custodial Credit Risk – Investments – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able 
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct 
investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local 
government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government 
investment pools. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk – The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on 
the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California 
Government Code. 

 
  Investments – The District’s investments consist of obligations of the United States government 

and its agencies and instrumentalities, municipal obligations, corporate obligations, certificates 
of deposit, money market accounts, and the State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund.  
All investments are recorded at fair market value. The California Government code requires 
that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state 
law.  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 110% of the 
total amount deposited by public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to 
secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of 
the secured public deposits. The investment of state pooled funds is governed by state law, by 
policies adopted by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and by accepted norms for 
prudent fiduciary management of investments. PMIB funds may be invested in a wide range of 
interest bearing securities, such as Treasury notes, prime commercial paper, certain California 
municipal and agency obligations, highly rated corporate bonds, obligations of such agencies as  
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NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
  FannieMae, and negotiable certificates of deposit.  Also allowed are time deposits in California 

banks, savings and loans, and credit unions that have not less than a “satisfactory” CRA rating.  
The value of each participating dollar equals the fair value divided by the amortized cost.  The 
District’s fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.   

 
  Investments at June 30, 2014 consisted of the following:   
 
 Governmental activities: 
   Local Agency Investment Fund $ 2,190,392 
   Wells Fargo – fixed income fund  2,250,000 
   Wells Fargo – money market  256,594 
  Subtotal Governmental activities  4,696,986 
 Business-type activities: 
   Money market accounts  41,375 
   Certificates of deposit  740,572 
   Corporate obligations  10,102 
   Municipal obligations  82,361 
   874,410 
   Less restricted reserves  874,410 
  Subtotal Business-type activities  –      
  Total Investments $ 4,696,986 
 
 
NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES 
 
  Receivables consist of the following at June 30, 2014:   
 
      Conservation   Mitigation   Water Supply   Total  
 
  Governmental activities: 
    Property taxes $ 64,355 $ 13,555 $ 8,030 $ 85,940 
    User fees  –       43,118  17,626  60,744 
    Reimbursements  201,656  969,926  588,377  1,759,959 
    Interest  793  1,293  4,265  6,351 
 
   Total Governmental activities $ 266,804 $ 1,027,892 $ 618,298  1,912,994 
 
  Business-type activities: 
    Water sales        292,932 
    Affiliates (Reclamation)        284,142 
    Other         14,156 
 
   Total Business-type activities        591,230 
 
    TOTAL       $ 2,504,224 
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
  Capital assets experienced the following changes for the year ended June 30, 2014:   
 
     Balance         Balance  
     Beginning   Current     Deletions/   End  
     of Year   Additions   Transfers   of Year  
 
    Depreciable assets: 
      Equipment: 
        Office $ 146,117 $ –      $ –      $ 146,117 
        Computer  895,649  48,950  –       944,599 
        Operating  21,415  –       –       21,415 
        Transportation  331,158  23,122  –       354,280 
        Project  261,365  1,304  –       262,669 
        Phone  43,851  –       –       43,851 

   Total equipment  1,699,555  73,376  –       1,772,931 

    Building and improvements  1,994,244  33,964  –       2,028,208 
    Monitoring stations  45,214  –       –       45,214 
    ASR facilities  4,239,256  291,274  –       4,530,530 
    Fish rearing facility  949,833  –       –       949,833 
    Leasehold improvements  2,837  –       –       2,837 

   Total depreciable assets  8,930,939  398,614  –       9,329,553 
 
  Less accumulated depreciation for: 
    Equipment: 
      Office  140,496  2,008  –       142,504 
      Computer  510,983  72,546  –       583,529 
      Operating  21,415  –       –       21,415 
      Transportation  314,898  7,164  –       322,062 
      Project  253,698  2,138  –       255,836 
      Phone  43,851  –       –       43,851 

   Total equipment  1,285,341  83,856  –       1,369,197 

    Building and improvements  739,255  50,085  –       789,340 
    Monitoring stations  45,214  –       –       45,214 
    ASR Facilities  615,306  142,188  –       757,494 
    Fish rearing facility  937,824  3,645  –       941,469 
    Leasehold improvements  2,837  –       –       2,837 

   Total accumulated depreciation  3,625,777  279,774  –       3,905,551 

  Total depreciable assets, net  5,305,162  118,840  –       5,424,002 

  Total governmental activities 
    capital assets, net  5,305,162  118,840  –       5,424,002 
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
     Balance         Balance  
     Beginning   Current     Deletions/   End  
     of Year   Additions   Transfers   of Year  
 
  Business-type activities: 

  Nondepreciable assets: 
      Construction in progress  8,104  108,486  (8,104)  108,486 

    Water resale rights  63,232,989  189,817  –       63,422,806 

    Less accumulated amortization for: 
      Water resale rights  17,926,591  1,585,572  –       19,512,163 

      Total water resale rights, net  45,306,398  (1,395,755)  –       43,910,643 

  Total business type activities 
  Capital assets, net  45,314,502  (1,287,270)  (8,104)  44,019,129 

  Total capital assets, net $ 50,619,664 $ (1,168,430) $ (8,104) $ 49,443,131 
 
  Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows: 
 
  Conservation   $ 41,546 
  Mitigation    53,425 
  Water supply    184,803 
 
   Total depreciation expense   $ 279,774 
 
 
NOTE 6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
 
  At June 30, 2014, interfund receivables and payables consist of: 
 
     Interfund   Interfund  
  Fund  Receivable   Payable  
  Water supply $ 2,201,211 $ –      
  Conservation  –       285,802 
  Mitigation  –       1,915,409 
 
    $ 2,201,211 $ 2,201,211 
 
  Interfund payables and receivables arise primarily from the Water Supply Fund cash accounts 

receiving all revenue and paying all expenditures. The Proprietary Fund also collects user fees 
which are remitted to the other funds periodically. Any fund transfers made between accounts 
are reflected in the above balances as well as in the respective fund balances.   

 
  Long-term loans between funds accrue interest at a predetermined rate which then becomes 

payable to the lender fund.  There were no such loans outstanding at June 30, 2014.   
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NOTE 7. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES 
 
  Through its participation in the CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project, the District is 

affiliated with the other organizations involved in the Project.   
 
  At June 30, 2014, accounts receivable from these affiliates were as follows: 
 
  Receivable from PBCo and affiliated golf courses – 
    Water sales   $ 577,074 
 
   Total   $ 577,074 
 
  At June 30, 2014, accounts payable to these affiliates were as follows:   
 
  Payable to CAWD for operations and maintenance   $ 80,959 
  Payable to PBCSD for operations and maintenance    43,731 
  Payable to MPWMD for salaries and legal    83,967 
 
   Total   $ 208,657 
 
  At June 30, 2014, accounts payable to PBCo. were as follows –  
 
  Payable to PBCo. for working capital 
    advance reimbursements $ 416,810 
 
   Total   $ 416,810 
 
 
NOTE 8. LONG–TERM DEBT 
 
  The Variable Rate Demand Certificates of Participation – Wastewater Reclamation Project 

Series 1992 (COPs) were issued in December 1992 in the amount of $33,900,000 by the District, 
and will mature on July 1, 2022. The COPs are in the minimum denomination of $100,000 or 
any integral multiple thereof or, during any reset period or on or after the conversion date, in 
the minimum denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The COPs bear interest 
at a variable rate unless the interest rate is converted to a reset rate for a reset period or to a 
fixed rate to the maturity of the COPs. The variable rate is the rate necessary to produce a par 
bid if the COPs were sold on the day the rate is computed. The COPs accrued interest at an 
initial rate of 2.30% per annum at issuance and, thereafter, accrue at a variable rate 
determined as provided in the Official Statement of the COPs issuance.   

 
  Restricted Reserves – A Renewal and Replacement Reserve was established to pay for future 

major repairs and capital replacements, and is held in a segregated account restricted for its 
intended purposes.  At June 30, 2014, the balance in this account was $873,273.   

 
  Security for Repayment – The Project assets have not been pledged to secure payment of the 

COPs, nor have any other assets of the District. However, pursuant to the Water Purchase 
Agreement, all net operating revenues from the operations of the Project are irrevocably 
pledged  by  the  District  to  the  payment of COPs. This pledge constitutes a first lien on the net  
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NOTE 8. LONG–TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
  operating revenues and, subject to application of amounts on deposit therein as permitted in 

the Water Purchase Agreement, for the payment of the COPs in accordance with the terms of 
the Water Purchase Agreement and of the Trust Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the District may at any time issue obligations or execute contracts which are secured by a lien 
subordinate to the pledge of net operating revenues created under the Water Purchase 
Agreement.  A Bond Letter of Credit also guarantees the COPs.   

 
  Repayment Schedule – Interest is paid to the holders of the COPs monthly at a variable rate as 

described above.  Pre-determined principal and interest payments per the 1992 COP issue are 
shown below.  Due to the nature of variable rate bonds, interest rates fluctuate weekly as a 
result of economic market conditions. 

 
  At June 30, 2014, the interest rate had dropped to a rate of 0.08% per annum.  Interest expense 

for the year was $47,688 as compared to the original scheduled interest expense of $642,400.  
Consequently, the pre-determined scheduled interest payments column below is presented for 
information purposes only, based upon the original 1992 COP offering. 

 
  Future principal and interest payments are as follows: 
 
   Certificates of Participation 
   Year           
  Ending June 30  Principal   Interest   Total  
   2015  $ 1,700,000 $ 642,400 $ 2,342,400 
   2016   1,800,000  576,700  2,376,700 
   2017   1,900,000  507,350  2,407,350 
   2018   2,000,000  434,350  2,434,350 
   2019   2,100,000  357,700  2,457,700 
   2020-2023   9,800,000  554,800  10,354,800 
 
    Total $ 19,300,000 $ 3,073,300 $ 22,373,300 
 
  Due Pebble Beach Company – Repayment of $5,520,000 bond carrying costs incurred by PBCo 

prior to July 1, 2013, to be reimbursed over the next ten years at $552,000 per year. 
 

The 2013 Installment Purchase Agreement – The District entered into an Installment Purchase 
Agreement dated April 25, 2013 along with a sale and transfer agreement and an assignment 
agreement for the first phase of the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project (ASR Project). The 
funds received from this agreement were used to retire the Bank of America line of credit, fund 
district reserves used to pay for ASR, finance and refinance certain capital improvements, fund 
a debt service reserve, and pay certain costs of execution and delivery of the Installment 
Purchase Agreement and related documents. The aggregate principal amount of the 
installment payments under the installment purchase agreement is $4,000,000 and will mature 
on June 30, 2023. Principal and interest payments of $109,568 are made bi-annually on 
December 31st and June 30th, beginning June 30, 2013 and continuing until December 31, 
2023. The interest rate with respect to the installment payments is 3.6% fixed for 10 years. 
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NOTE 8. LONG–TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

Restricted Reserves – A reserve fund was established to ensure adequate funding of the debt 
service, and is held in a segregated account restricted for its intended purposes. The reserve 
fund is required to maintain a balance of $219,136. At June 30, 2014, the balance in this 
account was $219,136. 
 
Security for Repayment – The assets of the ASR Project have not been pledged to secure 
payment of the installment purchase agreement. District Water Supply Charge revenues have 
been irrevocably pledged for the payment of the installment payments. This pledge constitutes 
a first and exclusive lien on and security interest in the revenues for the payment of the 
installment payments and payments of all specified obligations in accordance with the terms of 
the Installment Purchase Agreement.  

 
Repayment Schedule – Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

 
  Installment Purchase Agreement  
 Year    
Ending June 30  Principal   Interest   Total  
 2015  $ 79,980 $ 139,156 $ 219,136 
 2016   82,885  136,251  219,136 
 2017   85,896  133,240  219,136 
 2018   89,016  130,120  219,136 
 2019   92,249  126,887  219,136 
 2020-2023   3,456,391  1,694,467  5,150,858 

 
Total $ 3,886,417 $ 2,360,121 $ 6,246,538 

 
  Borrowings under the installment purchase agreement are subject to certain financial 

covenants.  
 
  Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:   
 
                 Due Within  
     2013   Additions   Reductions   2014   One Year  

Governmental activities: 
  Installment Purchase 
    Agreement  $ 3,961,632 $ –      $ 75,215 $ 3,886,417 $ 79,980 
  Compensated Absences  655,528  36,441  –       691,969  247,316 
  OPEB   815,777  186,955  –       1,002,732  –      

Total Governmental activities  5,432,937  223,396  75,215   5,581,118  327,296 

Business-type activities: 
  Due Pebble Beach Company  5,520,000  –       552,000  4,968,000  552,000 
  COPs   21,000,000  –        1,700,000  19,300,000  1,700,000 

Total Business-type activities   26,520,000  –       2,252,000   24,268,000  2,252,000 

 Total  $ 31,952,937 $ 223,396 $ 2,327,215 $ 29,849,118 $ 2,579,296 
 
  In prior years, the water supply, conservation, mitigation and water supply funds have been 

used to liquidate compensated absences.   
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NOTE 9. LEASE COMMITMENTS 
 
  The District is committed to a license agreement for the land on which the Sleepy Hollow 

Fishery was constructed. The license agreement calls for a payment of $1 per year for five years 
through December 5, 2015.   

 
  The District leases various equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Minimum future 

lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases for the years ended June 30, are as 
follows:  

 
2015 $ 11,880 
2016  11,880  
2017  11,880 
2018  11,880 
2019  11,761 

 
 Total $ 59,281 

 
Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $521.  
 
 

NOTE 10. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
  The District is insured against various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage or 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; work-related injuries to employees and natural 
disasters through participation in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the 
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). The relationship between the District and 
the JPA is such that the JPA is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting 
purposes. The insurance carried by the District includes policies for workers’ compensation, 
general liability, errors and omissions, and vehicular liability. 

 
  There have not been any significant reductions in insurance coverage as compared to the 

previous year.  Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage. 
 
  SDRMA was formed under a joint powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code 

Section 6500 et seq. effective August 1, 1986 to provide general liability, comprehensive/collision 
liability and property damage, and errors and omissions risk financing for the member districts. 
SDRMA is administered by a Board of Directors, consisting of one member appointed by the 
California Special Districts Association and five members elected by the districts participating.  
The board controls  the operations of the JPA, including selection of management and approval 
of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts beyond their 
representation on the board. Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the 
level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their 
participation in the JPA.   

 
  The SDRMA did not have long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2014, other than claims 

liabilities and capital lease obligations. The District’s share of year-end assets, liabilities and risk 
margin has not been calculated by the SDRMA.   

 
 
 
 

38 



 
 
 
 

HAYASHI WAYLAND - PRELIMINARY DRAFT FOR REVIEW & DISCUSSION - SUBJECT TO CHANGE - 12/10/2014 
 

 
 

NOTE 11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
  The District has a deferred compensation plan for its eligible employees wherein amounts 

earned by the employees are paid at a future date. This plan meets the requirements of 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. All full-time, regular employees are permitted to 
participate in the plan beginning on the day of hire.   

 
  The employee may elect to make tax deferred contributions up to the limits established by the 

Internal Revenue Service for this type of plan. The employee is 100% vested in their 
contributions from the first date of participation. The plan does not provide for District 
contributions.  The participant has a choice of investment options. 

 
  The plan is administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation (International City Management 

Association).  The assets of the plan are held in trust, with the District serving as trustee.  The 
plan assets held in the ICMA Retirement Trust are held for the exclusive benefit of the plan 
participants and their beneficiaries.  The assets shall not be diverted to any other purpose.  The 
plan does not permit loans.   

 
  The District believes, and the auditors concur, that, since it does not provide investment advice 

or administer the plan, it does not maintain a fiduciary relationship with the plan.  Therefore, 
the District does not report the plan assets in its financial statements.   

 
 
NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
  Plans Description – The District provides two defined benefit healthcare plans (the “Retiree 

Health Plans”).  The Retiree Health Plans provide healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and 
dependants or survivors.  Coverage to members of the General Staff Bargaining Unit is provided 
through the Association of California Water Agencies Health Benefit Authority Anthem Classic 
Plan, and coverage  for the Management Staff Bargaining Unit members  and the Confidential 
 
Staff Bargaining Unit members is provided through the Laborer’s Trust Funds for Northern 
California Special Plan III. The Plans provide for continuation of medical insurance benefits for 
certain retirees and their dependents or survivors who meet the eligibility criteria established 
by the District and/or medical care providers. The Plans can be amended by action of the Board 
of Directors during negotiation of periodic Memorandums of Understanding with the different 
bargaining units. The Plans do not issue a stand alone financial report since there are no assets 
legally segregated for the sole purpose of paying benefits under the Plans. 
 
Funding Policy – The contribution requirements of the District are based on a pay-as-you go 
basis. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the District paid approximately $63,724 for 
retiree health benefits. As of June 30, 2014, the District had eight retirees receiving benefits 
and 26 active employees eligible to receive benefits in the future. The District currently 
contributes enough money to the plans to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation – The District’s annual other post employment 
benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 
45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover 
the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) 
over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the 
District’s annual OPEB cost of the year, the amount actually contributed to the plans, and 
changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation.   
 
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 250,635 
Interest on net OPEB obligation  40,789 
Adjustment to ARC  (40,745) 
 
Annual OPEB cost (expense)    250,679 
 
Contributions made  (63,724) 
 
Increase in net OPEB obligation  186,955 
 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year  815,777 
 
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 1,002,732 

 
Trend Information – The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed to the plans, and the net OPEB obligation were as follows: 

 
         Percentage of     
 Fiscal     Actual   Annual OPEB     
 Year  Annual   Contribution   Cost   Net OPEB  
 Ending  OPEB Cost   Made   Contributed   Obligation  

 2012 $ 283,768 $ 71,681  25.3%  $ 587,987 
 2013 $ 294,448 $ 66,658  22.6%  $ 815,777 
 2014 $ 250,679 $ 63,724  25.4%  $ 1,002,732 
 

Funding Status and Funding Progress – As of June 30, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation 
date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,666,140, all of which was unfunded. The 
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plans) for the year ended 
June 30, 2014 was $2,251,992, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the 
covered payroll was 118.39%.   

 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plans and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents 
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plans’ assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes 
are based on the substantive plans (the plans as understood by the employer and the plans’ 
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plans’ members to that 
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

 
In the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used.  The 
actuarial assumptions include a 5.0% investment rate of return (discount rate) and an annual 
health care cost trend rate of actual premiums initially (2014), reduced by decrements to an 
ultimate rate of 4.7% after ten years. The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized over a 
closed thirty year period using the level percentage of payroll method. The remaining 
amortization period at June 30, 2014, was twenty-six years.    

 
 
NOTE 13. PENSION PLAN 
 
  Plan Description – The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement 

System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension 
plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, 
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment 
and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit 
provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute.  CalPERS issues a publicly 
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive 
Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.   

 
  Funding Policy – Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary.  The 

District makes the contributions required of District employees on their behalf and for their 
account. The District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate to fund the 
benefits for its members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 the employer contribution 
rate was 13.532% of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of plan members 
and the District are established and may be amended by CalPERS.   

 
  Annual Pension Cost – The District’s contributions to CalPERS of $435,114, $448,761 and 

$440,306 for the years ending June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were equal to the 
District’s required contributions for each year.   

 
 
NOTE 14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
  Due to the various activities of the District involving the Carmel River, several pending and 

threatened claims against the District are outstanding. No estimate of the amount of any 
potential liability to the District can reasonably be made at this time.   
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NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES 
 
 Aquifer Storage and Recovery – As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the District continued with 

contracts relating to development of the Water Project Phase I and II ASR facilities. As of 
June 30, 2014, the District has one outstanding contract with Pueblo Water Resources for a 
total of $608,138. 

 
Other contract commitments related to miscellaneous projects and consulting services that are 
outstanding as of June 30, 2014 total $36,156.   

 
 
NOTE 16. BUILDING ACQUISITION 
 
  In March 2000, the District purchased a building at 5 Harris Court in Ryan Ranch Office Park for 

approximately $1.6 million. The total costs to purchase the land, building, tenant improvements, 
interior design fee, furnishings and equipment were approximately $1.9 million. The District 
purchased the building from monies available in the Mitigation and Water Supply Funds. The 
District plans to repay the funds over a term of fifteen years, with interest at 5.35%.   

 
 
NOTE 17. AUTHORITATIVE PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED 
 
  In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-

an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This 
Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. Note disclosures and 
required supplementary information requirements about pensions are also addressed.  

 
  The requirements of this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in 

employer and governmental nonemployer contributing entity financial reports and will 
enhance its value for assessing accountability and interperiod equity by requiring recognition of 
the entire net pension liability and a more comprehensive measure of pension expense.   

 
  This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.  Earlier application is 

encouraged. The District has no plan for early implementation of this Statement. At this time 
the District is not certain of the effect the adoption of Statement 68 will have on the 
accompanying financial statements.  

 
  GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transitions for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 

Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 was issued to address an issue 
regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 68 to require 
that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its 
pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net 
pension liability. This Statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2015.   

 
 
NOTE 18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
  After June 30, 2014 the District entered into one additional contract relating to the repair of the 

Phase I Santa Margarita site with Zim Industries, Inc. for a total of $112,431. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
  
 
        Actuarial            UAAL as a  
   Actuarial   Actuarial   Accrued   Unfunded         Percentage  
 Fiscal   Valuation   Value of   Liability   AAL   Funded   Covered   of Covered  
 Year   Date   Assets   (AAL)   (UAAL)   Ratio   Payroll   Payroll  
 
  2012   6/30/2012  $ –      $ 2,876,883 $ 2,876,883  0%  $ 2,083,463  138.08%  
  2013   6/30/2012  $ –      $ 2,876,883 $ 2,876,883  0%  $ 2,159,456  133.22%  
  2014   6/30/2014  $ –      $ 2,666,140 $ 2,666,140  0%  $ 2,251,992  118.39% 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL – WATER SUPPLY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
  
 
           Variance  
  Budgeted Amounts   Actual   With Final  
  Original   Final   Amounts   Amounts  
 
REVENUES: 
  Property taxes $ 131,098 $ 317,848 $ 333,267 $ 15,419 
  Water supply charge  3,400,000  3,400,000  3,412,207  12,207 
  Connection charges, net of refunds  175,000  175,000  223,625  48,625 
  Project reimbursements  2,466,012  2,420,762  2,093,013  (327,749) 
  Investment income  3,000  3,000  12,799  9,799 
  Miscellaneous  –       –       16,010  16,010 
 
 Total revenues  6,175,110  6,316,610  6,090,921  (225,689) 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
  Personnel: 
    Salaries  644,900  668,700  768,299  (99,599) 
    Employee benefits and other personnel  329,900  300,900  321,168  (20,268) 
  Services and supplies: 
    Project expenditures  7,388,179  7,969,940  6,465,907  1,504,033 
    Operating expenditures  210,850  210,950  143,720  67,230 
    Professional fees  249,200  249,200  304,978  (55,778) 
  Capital outlay  31,400  34,300  35,919  (1,619) 
  Debt service: 
    Principal  –       –       75,215  (75,215) 
    Interest and other charges  230,000  230,000  143,921  86,079 
 
 Total expenditures  9,084,429  9,663,990  8,259,127  1,404,863 
 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES  
  OVER EXPENDITURES  (2,909,319)  (3,347,380)  (2,168,206)  1,179,174 
 
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE  (2,909,319)  (3,347,380)  (2,168,206)  1,179,174 
 
FUND BALANCE – BEGINNING OF YEAR   304,543  6,150,886  6,060,318  (90,658) 
 
FUND BALANCE – END OF YEAR $ (2,604,776) $ 2,803,506 $ 3,892,112 $ 1,088,606 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL – CONSERVATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
  
 
           Variance  
  Budgeted Amounts   Actual   With Final  
  Original   Final   Amounts   Amounts  
 
REVENUES: 
  Property taxes $ 1,050,600 $ 1,042,400 $ 1,100,905 $ 58,505 
  User fees   –       –       6,867  6,867 
  Permit fees  175,000  175,000  175,023  23 
  Project reimbursements  1,479,700  2,224,700  1,190,653  (1,034,047) 
  Investment income  2,700  2,700  3,713  1,013 
  Legal fee reimbursements  –       –       18,441  18,441 
  Recording fees  –       –       15,061  15,061 
 
 Total revenues  2,708,000  3,444,800  2,510,663  (934,137) 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
  Personnel: 
    Salaries   580,400  601,800  449,925  151,875 
    Employee benefits and other personnel  296,900  270,800  240,948  29,852 
  Services and supplies: 
    Project expenditures  1,492,600  2,231,600  1,182,125  1,049,475 
    Operating expenditures  212,600  212,600  147,578  65,022 
    Professional fees  97,300  97,300  62,765  34,535 
  Capital outlay  28,200  30,700  22,394  8,306 
 
 Total expenditures  2,708,000  3,444,800  2,105,735  1,339,065 
 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES  –       –       404,928  404,928 
 
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE  –       –       404,928  404,928 
 
FUND BALANCE – BEGINNING OF YEAR   367,896  681,770  681,770  –      
 
FUND BALANCE – END OF YEAR $ 367,896 $ 681,770 $ 1,086,698 $ 404,928 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL – MITIGATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
  
 
             Variance  
    Budgeted Amounts   Actual   With Final  
    Original   Final   Amounts   Amounts  
 
REVENUES: 
  Property taxes $ 221,302 $ 139,752 $ 148,624 $ 8,872 
  User fees   100,000  100,000  87,064  (12,936) 
  Permit fees  56,000  56,000  65,056  9,056 
  Project reimbursement  31,750  32,850  –       (32,850) 
  Investment income  4,300  4,300  3,530  (770) 
  Recording fees  6,000  6,000  –       (6,000) 
  Mitigation revenue  1,801,800  1,801,800  1,801,800  –      
  Grants   1,291,133  741,133  602,499  (138,634) 
  Miscellaneous  15,000  15,000  7,141  (7,859) 
 
 Total revenues  3,527,285  2,896,835  2,715,714  (181,121) 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
  Personnel: 
    Salaries   924,400  958,500  1,033,767  (75,267) 
    Employee benefits and other personnel  472,650  431,300  463,526  (32,226) 
  Services and supplies: 
    Project expenditures  1,647,183  1,077,683  556,364  521,319 
    Operating expenditures  319,415  319,815  230,029  89,786 
    Professional fees  117,550  117,550  81,997  35,553 
  Capital outlay  44,900  50,000  49,027  973 
 
 Total expenditures  3,526,098  2,954,848  2,414,710  540,138 
 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES  
  OVER EXPENDITURES  1,187  (58,013)  301,004  359,017 
 
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE  1,187  (58,013)  301,004  359,017 
 
FUND BALANCE – BEGINNING OF YEAR   787,054  30,969  30,969  –      
 
FUND BALANCE – END OF YEAR $ 788,241 $ (27,044) $ 331,973 $ 359,017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

  
 
 
NOTE 1. BUDGETARY DATA 
 
  The District adopts an annual legal budget, which covers the Water Supply Fund (which acts as 

the District’s general fund), Conservation Fund, and Mitigation Fund.  All appropriations lapse 
at fiscal year end and then are rebudgeted for the coming fiscal year.  Encumbrance accounting 
is not used.  The budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.   

 
  A mid-year budget review is performed and the budget is amended and adopted by the board 

of directors.  The District must approve additional appropriations or interfund transfers not 
included in the amended budget resolution.   
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[DATE] 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Monterey, California 
 
 
We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the basic financial statements of Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District (the District) for the year ended June 30, 2014. This report 
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your 
oversight responsibility for the District’s financial reporting process.  
 
Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged 
with Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the 
auditor and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes 
our responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit 
that are, significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.  
 
 
Our Responsibilities with regard to the Financial Statement Audit   
 
Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts have been described to 
you in our arrangement letter dated July 31, 2014.  
 
Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit  
 
We have issued a separate communication regarding the planned scope and timing of our audit and 
have discussed with you our identification of and planned audit response to significant risks of material 
misstatement.  
 
Accounting Policies and Practices 
 
Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain circumstances, management may select 
among alternative accounting practices.  In our view, in such circumstances, management has selected 
the preferable accounting practice. 
  
Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies 
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies used by 
the District.  The District did not adopt any significant new accounting policies nor have there been any 
changes in existing significant accounting policies during the current period. 
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
[DATE] 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement establishes standards 
for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of 
resources, and expense/expenditures. Note disclosures and required supplementary information 
requirements about pensions are also addressed.  
 
The requirements of this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in employer and 
governmental non-employer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its value for assessing 
accountability and inter-period equity by requiring recognition of the entire net pension liability and a 
more comprehensive measure of pension expense.   
 
This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. Earlier application is encouraged.  
The District has no plan for early implementation of this Statement.  At this time the District is not certain 
of the effect the adoption of Statement 68 will have on the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transitions for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 was issued to address an issue 
regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 68 to require that, 
at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension 
contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension 
liability.  This Statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2015. 
 
Significant or Unusual Transactions   
We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or significant accounting policies in 
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  
 
Alternative Treatments Discussed with Management 
We did not discuss with management any alternative treatments within generally accepted accounting 
principles for accounting policies and practices related to material items during the current audit period. 
 
Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon 
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to 
monitor throughout the year the process used to compute and record these accounting estimates. The 
significant accounting estimates reflected in the District’s June 30, 2014 basic financial statements include 
useful lives of depreciable assets and the cost of other post employment benefits. 
  
Audit Adjustments 
 
Audit adjustments proposed by us and recorded by the District are shown on the attached “Adjusting 
Journal Entries,” “Reclassification Journal Entries,” and “Prepared by Client Journal Entries.” 
 
Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
There were no uncorrected misstatements.   
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
[DATE] 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant accounting 
principles, the basis for management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit or 
significant disclosures to be included in the financial statements.   
 
Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or 
auditing matters.   
 
Significant Issues Discussed with Management 
 
No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed with or were the subject of correspondence 
with management.   
 
Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit.  
 
Letter Communicating Significant Deficiencies and Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting 
 
When significant deficiencies and material weaknesses are identified during our audit of the financial 
statements, we are required to communicate them to you in writing. For the year ended June 30, 2014 a 
letter was not required. 
  
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
Bank Reconciliations  
We noted that many old outstanding checks, some over one year old, are being carried on monthly cash 
reconciliations. This causes additional time to be spent by the Accountant to reconcile the bank accounts 
each month.  
 
We recommend that checks that are over one year old be investigated and removed from the bank 
reconciliation and that the original transaction be reversed in the current year. Research should be done 
periodically to eliminate large numbers of old items being carried from month to month. 
 
 
Accounting Policies 
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, issued 
February 2009, was in effect for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. The objective of this 
Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance 
classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type 
definitions. This Statement established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of 
the resources reported in governmental funds. The Board has not yet adopted a resolution approving a 
fund balance policy. 
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
[DATE] 
Page 4 of 4 
 
We recommend the District adopt a resolution approving a fund balance policy that provides for formal 
definitions for the various fund balance categories. 
 
Certain Written Communications between Management and Our Firm 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated __________REPORT DATE]. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors the Administrative 
Committee and management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties.  It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have regarding this report. 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Michael T. Briley, CPA 
Partner 
Hayashi Wayland 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Adjusting Journal Entries 
 Reclassification Journal Entries 
 Prepared by Client Journal Entries 
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District AJE
Year End: June 30, 2014

Adjusting Journal Entries

Date:  7/1/2013  To  6/30/2014

Account No:  AJE-01  To  AJE-99

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit Amount Chg Net Income (Loss)

Net Income (Loss) Before Adjustments 154,363.00

AJE-01 6/30/2014 Current Year OPEB Cost 24-10-716000 G34G 80,391.00

AJE-01 6/30/2014 Current Year OPEB Cost 26-10-716000 G34G 50,478.00

AJE-01 6/30/2014 Current Year OPEB Cost 35-10-716000 G34G 56,086.00

AJE-01 6/30/2014 Net OPEB Obligation 51-10-382000 51 186,955.00

To record adjustment to OPEB

liability.

186,955.00 186,955.00 (186,955.00 ) (32,592.00 )

AJE-02 6/30/2014 Receivable-bldg repayment (MEMO) 24-10-150500 SRF01 71,843.00

AJE-02 6/30/2014 Payble-bldg repayment (MEMO) 24-10-380000 SRF01 71,843.00

AJE-02 6/30/2014 Receivable-Bldg Repayment (MEMO) 35-10-150500 CPF01 71,843.00

AJE-02 6/30/2014 Payable-Bldg Repayment (MEMO) 35-10-380000 CPF01 71,843.00

To record Harris Court activity.

143,686.00 143,686.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Unapportioned/Uncollected Taxes Rece24-10-150100 SRF01 13,192.00

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 24-10-150200 SRF01

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Deferred Revenue 24-10-370000 SRF01 13,192.00

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Unapportioned/Uncollected Taxes Rece26-10-150100 SRF02 2,181.00

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 26-10-150200 SRF02

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Deferred Revenue 26-10-370000 SRF02 2,181.00

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Unapportioned/Uncollected Taxes Rece35-10-150100 CPF01 29.00

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 35-10-150200 CPF01

AJE-03 6/30/2014 Deferred Revenue 35-10-370000 CPF01 29.00

To record uncollected taxes.

15,402.00 15,402.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Computer equipment & programs 24-02-916000 SRF01 4.00

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Gas 24-04-791000 SRF01 3.00

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Transportation equipment 24-04-914000 SRF01 1.00

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Computer equipment & programs 26-02-916000 SRF02 3.00

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Gas 26-05-791000 SRF02 3.00

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Miscellaneous 35-02-850000 CPF01 3.00

AJE-04 6/30/2014 Computer equipment & programs 35-02-916000 CPF01 3.00

To adjust Capital Outlay and tie

to Fixed Asset additions

10.00 10.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

346,053.00 346,053.00 (186,955.00 ) (32,592.00 )
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District RJE
Year End: June 30, 2014

Reclassification Journal Entries

Date:  7/1/2013  To  6/30/2014

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit Amount Chg Net Income (Loss)

Net Income (Loss) Before Adjustments (32,592.00 )

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Property Tax Revenue 24-10-611000 SRF01 2,830.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Interest-Monterey County Taxes 24-10-691500 SRF01 180.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Tax Administration fee 24-80-750000 SRF01 3,010.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Property Tax Revenue 26-10-611000 SRF02 13,438.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Interest-Monterey County Taxes 26-10-691500 SRF02 853.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 TAX ADMINISTRATION FEE 26-80-750000 SRF02 14,291.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Property Tax Revenue 35-10-611000 CPF01 1,677.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Interest-Monterey County Taxes 35-10-691500 CPF01 106.00

RJE-01 6/30/2014 Tax Administration Fee 35-80-750000 CPF01 1,783.00

To allocate tax and admin fee out

of property tax revenue.

19,084.00 19,084.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

RJE-02 6/30/2014 Reserve for Prepaid Expense 24-10-406000 SRF01 2,117.00

RJE-02 6/30/2014 Fund Balance 24-10-410000 SRF01 2,117.00

RJE-02 6/30/2014 Reserve for Prepaid Expense 26-10-406000 SRF02 729.00

RJE-02 6/30/2014 Fund Balance 26-10-410000 SRF02 729.00

RJE-02 6/30/2014 Reserve for Prepaid Expense 35-10-406000 CPF01 33,178.00

RJE-02 6/30/2014 Fund Balance 35-10-410000 CPF01 33,178.00

To reclassify nonspendable fund

balances for prepaids - no prepaids at

year-end.

36,024.00 36,024.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

RJE-03 6/30/2014 Capital Equipment Reserve 24-10-406500 SRF01 59,200.00

RJE-03 6/30/2014 Fund Balance 24-10-410000 SRF01 59,200.00

To reclassify 13-14 used of

reserves.

59,200.00 59,200.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

RJE-04 6/30/2014 User Fees 26-10-520000 SRF02 1,239.00

RJE-04 6/30/2014 Recording Fees 26-10-530000 SRF02 22.00

RJE-04 6/30/2014 Less: Refund Connection Fee 26-10-555000 SRF02 1,239.00

RJE-04 6/30/2014 Miscellaneous-Other 26-10-591000 SRF02 22.00

To reclassify debit balances in

revenue accounts for f/s presentation.

Amounts immaterial.

1,261.00 1,261.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )

115,569.00 115,569.00 0.00 (32,592.00 )
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District PBC
Year End: June 30, 2014

Prepared by Client Journal Entries

Date:  7/1/2013  To  6/30/2014

Account No:  PBC-01  To  PBC-99

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit Amount Chg Net Income (Loss)

Net Income (Loss) Before Adjustments (582,530.00 )

PBC-01 6/30/2014 Ground Water Replenishment Proj. 35-04-786010 CPF01 37,778.00

PBC-01 6/30/2014 Accounts Payable 35-10-310000 CPF01 37,778.00

To record GWR reimbursement

37,778.00 37,778.00 (37,778.00 ) (620,308.00 )

PBC-02 6/30/2014 Project Reimbursements Receivable 24-10-130000 SRF01 128,978.00

PBC-02 6/30/2014 IRWMP Grant Reimbursements 24-10-660003 SRF01 128,978.00

JN00644- PBC 10/23/14. To accrue

for the IRWMP grant receivable for invoice

#8.

128,978.00 128,978.00 128,978.00 (491,330.00 )

PBC-03 6/30/2014 Project Reimbursements Receivable 24-10-130000 SRF01 35,270.00

PBC-03 6/30/2014 IRWMP Grant Reimbursements 24-10-660003 SRF01 35,270.00

JN00645- PBC 10/23/14. Accrue

County IRWMP grant reimbursement

receivable.

35,270.00 35,270.00 35,270.00 (456,060.00 )

PBC-04 6/30/2014 Project Reimbursements Receivable 24-10-130000 SRF01 150,629.00

PBC-04 6/30/2014 IRWMP Grant Reimbursements 24-10-660003 SRF01 150,629.00

JN00646- PBC 10/23/14. Accrue

IRWMP grant receivable invoice #9.

150,629.00 150,629.00 150,629.00 (305,431.00 )

PBC-05 6/30/2014 Project Reimbursements Receivable 24-10-130000 SRF01 183,149.00

PBC-05 6/30/2014 IRWMP Grant Reimbursements 24-10-660003 SRF01 183,149.00

JN00647- PBC 10/23/14. Accrue

IRWMP grant receivable invoice #10.

183,149.00 183,149.00 183,149.00 (122,282.00 )

PBC-06 6/30/2014 Vacation/sick leave liability 51-10-281000 51 36,441.00

PBC-06 6/30/2014 Compensated absences: L/T 51-10-381000 51 36,441.00

JN00648- PBC 10-23-14 To accrue

PTO liability for year end.

36,441.00 36,441.00 0.00 (122,282.00 )

PBC-07 6/30/2014 Project Reimbursements Receivable 24-10-130000 SRF01 128,568.00

PBC-07 6/30/2014 IRWMP Grant Reimbursements 24-10-660003 SRF01 128,568.00

JN00628- PBC 10/23/14 Reverse

AJE-12 to accrue for receivable

128,568.00 128,568.00 (128,568.00 ) (250,850.00 )

PBC-08 6/30/2014 Project Reimbursements Receivable 35-10-130000 CPF01 16,602.00

PBC-08 6/30/2014 GWR Project Reimbursements 35-10-580015 CPF01 16,602.00

JN00642- PBC 10/23/14. Accrue

MRWPCA GWR Reimbursment Revenue

16,602.00 16,602.00 16,602.00 (234,248.00 )
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Monterey Peninsula Water Management District PBC-1
Year End: June 30, 2014

Prepared by Client Journal Entries

Date:  7/1/2013  To  6/30/2014

Account No:  PBC-01  To  PBC-99

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit Amount Chg Net Income (Loss)

PBC-09 6/30/2014 A/R Cal-Am 26-10-141600 SRF02 201,656.00

PBC-09 6/30/2014 CAW-Conservation 26-10-580007 SRF02 201,656.00

JN00643- PBC 10/23/14 Accrue

Cal-Am conservation  reimbursement

201,656.00 201,656.00 201,656.00 (32,592.00 )

919,071.00 919,071.00 549,938.00 (32,592.00 )
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ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

9. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF TREASURER’S REPORT FOR OCTOBER 2014 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee considered this item on 

December 8, 2014 and recommended approval. 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Exhibit 9-A comprises the Treasurer’s Report for October 2014.  Exhibit 9-B, 

Exhibit 9-C and Exhibit 9-D are listings of check disbursements for the period October 1-31, 

2014.  Check Nos. 19299 through 19728, the direct deposits of employee’s paychecks, payroll 

tax deposits, and bank charges resulted in total disbursements for the period in the amount of 

$1,858,687.43.  That amount included $89,126.62 for conservation rebates.  Exhibit 9-E reflects 

the financial statements for the month ending October 31, 2014.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends adoption of the October 2014 Treasurer’s 

Report and financial statements, and ratification of the disbursements made during the month.  

The Administrative Committee reviewed this item at its December 8, 2014 meeting and voted 3 

to 0 to recommend approval.  

   

EXHIBITS 

9-A Treasurer’s Report 

9-B Listing of Cash Disbursements-Regular 

9-C Listing of Cash Disbursements-Payroll 

9-D Listing of Other Bank Items 

9-E Financial Statements 
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EXHIBIT 9-A

 PB

 MPWMD Wells Fargo MPWMD Reclamation

Description Checking Money Market L.A.I.F. Investments Total Money Market

     Beginning Balance ($34,157.27) $566,630.65 $1,391,679.87 $2,513,854.04 4,438,007.29 $580,301.82

Transfer to/from LAIF 700,000.00 (700,000.00) 0.00

Fee Deposits 566,962.94 566,962.94 524,775.59

Interest 8.47 1,056.22           2,526.44           3,591.13 8.85

Transfer-Money Market to Checking 1,600,000.00 (1,600,000.00) 0.00

Transfer-Money Market to W/Fargo 265,315.07 (265,315.07) 0.00

W/Fargo-Investment Purchase  0.00

Transfer Ckg to MPWMD M/Mrkt 0.00

MoCo Tax & WS Chg Installment Pymt 0.00

Transfer to CAWD 0.00 (570,000.00)

Voided Cks 0.00

Bank Corrections/Reversals/Errors (9.00) (9.00) (25.00)

Bank Charges/Rtn'd Deposits/Other (271.45) (15.00) (286.45)

Payroll Tax Deposits (40,676.08) (40,676.08)

Payroll Checks/Direct Deposits (195,910.58) (195,910.58)

General Checks (1,621,829.32) (1,621,829.32)

Prepaid Exp-Automatic Bank Pymt 0.00

     Ending Balance ($292,844.70) $498,893.13 $692,736.09 $2,251,065.41 $3,149,849.93 $535,061.26

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT FOR OCTOBER 2014
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EXHIBIT 9-B
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ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 

 

17. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF JANUARY THROUGH MARCH 2015 

QUARTERLY WATER SUPPLY STRATEGY AND BUDGET 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Kevan Urquhart &  Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 Jonathan Lear   

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  Notice of Exemption, CEQA, Article 19, Section 15301 (Class 1) 

ESA Compliance:  Consistent with the 2001 Conservation Agreement, 2009 Settlement 

Agreement between the National Marine Fisheries Service and California American 

Water to minimize take of listed steelhead in the Carmel River, and SWRCB WR Order 

Nos. 95-10, 98-04, 2002-0002, and 2009-0060. 

 

SUMMARY:  The Board will accept public comment and take action on the January through 

March 2015 Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget for the California American Water 

(Cal-Am) Main and Laguna Seca Subarea Water Distribution Systems (WDS).  The proposed 

budget tables will be included as Exhibit 17-A and 17-B, and will be submitted at the December 

15, 2014 Board Meeting.  The Exhibits will show monthly production by source of supply that is 

required to meet projected customer demand in Cal-Am’s Main system and Laguna Seca 

Subarea systems (i.e., Ryan Ranch, Bishop, and Hidden Hills) during the January through March 

2015 period.  The proposed strategy and budgets will be designed to maximize the long-term 

production potential and protect the environmental quality of the Seaside Groundwater and 

Carmel River Basins.  

 

Exhibit 17-A and 17-B will not be available for inclusion in the Monterey Peninsula Water 

Management District (MPWMD or District) Board packet due to the timing of the December 9, 

2014 interagency meeting to agree on the targets prior to the Board meeting, but these exhibits 

will be available for distribution on the date of the Board meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board should receive public input, close the Public Hearing, and 

discuss the proposed quarterly water supply budget.  District staff will recommend adoption of 

the proposed budget.  The budget tables will be described in greater detail in Exhibit 17-C, 

Quarterly Water Supply Strategy Report:  January - March 2015, to be distributed on the date of 

the Board meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget pertains to production 

within Cal-Am’s Main and Laguna Seca Subarea systems for the three-month period of January, 

February, and March 2015.  Staff from the District and Cal-Am are scheduled to meet to 



cooperatively review, refine and approve this strategy on December 9, 2014.  Staff from the 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), United States Fish and Wildlife Service 

(USFWS), National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), and State Water Resources Control 

Board’s, Division of Water Rights (SWRCB-DWR) are expected to attend. 

 

Rule 101, Section B of the District Rules and Regulations requires that a Public Hearing be held 

at the time of determination of the District water supply management strategy.  Adoption of the 

quarterly water supply strategy and budget is categorically exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements per Article 19, Section 15301 (Class 1).  A 

Notice of Exemption will be filed with the Monterey County Clerk's office, pending Board 

action on this item. 

 

EXHIBITS (will be distributed at the December 15, 2014 Board Meeting) 

17-A Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget for CAW Main System:  January - March 

2015 

17-B Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget for CAW Laguna Seca Subarea:  January - 

March 2015 

17-C Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget Report:  January - March 2015  
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ITEM: ACTION ITEM 

 

18. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF POLICY ON OUTDOOR RESTAURANT 

SEATING 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014  Budgeted:    N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:  

 

Prepared By: Stephanie Locke Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation: N/A 

CEQA Compliance: N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Drought and the Cease and Desist Order (CDO) against California American 

Water (Cal-Am) necessitate careful management of our water supply. Recent press coverage 

regarding downtown revitalization programs in the cities of Monterey and Pacific Grove have 

focused attention on the growing popularity of al fresco dining as a means to attract more patrons 

to restaurants and bars (hereafter referred to only as restaurants). Historically, MPWMD has not 

required a Water Permit for outdoor seating, but the obvious increase in this type of use warrants 

examination by the MPWMD Board to determine whether existing policy should change.   

The Water Demand Committee considered this item on December 5, 2014. As part of the 

discussion, representatives from the Coalition of Peninsula Businesses submitted examples of 

restaurant seating capacity as it relates to actual water consumption. The documents (Exhibit 18-

A and Exhibit 18-B) support the Coalition’s position that outdoor seating does not increase 

water use above the Water Use Capacity calculated by using the indoor seat count as shown on a 

Water Permit issued by the District. The Committee concluded that the District’s policy on 

outdoor seating should be clarified and offered the following recommendation to the Board. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Water Demand Committee recommends that the Board direct 

staff to prepare a conceptual ordinance that would: (a) allow future expansions of outdoor seating 

at 50 percent of the number of indoor seats identified in a Water Permit or otherwise documented 

at the Site, with no increase in cost of the District’s Capacity Fee, with a finding that a limited 

number of seats at a Site do not affect the Water Use Capacity of the business; (b) no water 

credit would be associated with removal of outdoor seats (unless permitted using a water 

Allocation or Water Credit); (c) the ordinance would apply prospectively to projects as of a 

specific date; (d) staff should work with the Technical Advisory Committee to develop 

definitions of “outdoor” and “dining enclosure” to clarify the difference between indoor and 

outdoor seating; and (e) staff should investigate methods to ascertain seating counts at existing 

establishments where a Water Permit has not been issued.   The conceptual ordinance should be 

submitted to the Water Demand Committee for additional consideration before it is brought back 

to the Board for first reading.   



DISCUSSION:  Board action in the appeal of Rappa’s Restaurant in November 1990 supported 

the position that outdoor seating had insignificant or no water demand impact. In the Rappa’s 

appeal, staff denied a Water Credit for outdoor seats when the proprietor proposed to enclose the 

seating area, stating that outdoor dining was “seasonal and temporal – lunching or dining al 

fresco in Monterey is a limited activity at best.” Further discussion during the hearing noted that 

outdoor dining was “limited by season and time of day.” The Board upheld the recommendation 

to deny credit for outdoor seating. As a result of that Board action, staff continued to take the 

position that outdoor seating had no Water Use Capacity when issuing Water Permits.  

Al fresco dining in 2014 has significantly changed from the 1990’s. Today’s technology provides 

for sturdy coverings (awnings, canopies, etc.) above and beside the diners. Patio heaters and 

other heating technologies provide warmth on all but the chilliest of days. Restaurants that invest 

in this equipment are able to utilize their outdoor areas nearly year-round. Other restaurants that 

offer basic outdoor seating continue to be affected by weather and do not have the same ability to 

service customers.   

Overall water consumption on the Monterey Peninsula as a result of outdoor seating is not likely 

impacted by al fresco dining. Consumers tend to dine locally and outdoor seating is not the 

primary reason additional visitors come to the Monterey Peninsula. Given that, the overall 

demand for dining within the District is not significantly affected by outdoor seating, rather al 

fresco dining creates competition between restaurants for a customer’s demand.  

The Board needs to consider the future of Water Permits and outdoor seating. First, the Board 

must examine two fundamental questions:  (a) If overall water use in the District is not increased, 

should the practice be further regulated? (b) If permitting is desired on a Site-by-Site basis, does 

outdoor seating affect water consumption at that site and require additional regulation?  Several 

potential actions have been identified for discussion and policy consideration: 

Option 1:  Require new outdoor seating capacity to obtain a Water Permit. 

 “Grandfather” existing outdoor seating. Staff proposes that existing restaurants should be 

surveyed to obtain the existing seat counts for indoor and outdoor seating. Based on this 

response, a Water Permit would be issued for every restaurant identifying the number of 

each type of seat (indoor and outdoor). Restaurants would be required to obtain a Water 

Permit prior to the date of implementation of the new policy or the business would be 

required to go through the normal permit process after that date. Water Permits issued 

during the interim would be processed without charge.  

The effort to identify, contact, survey and permit existing outdoor seating would have an 

impact on staffing. However, obtaining this information would be important for enforcing 

future Water Permit requirements, if the current practice changes. Surveys could be 

mailed using Cal-Am’s restaurant customer information, health department and/or 

business license records. The survey would also be a means of conveying the new 

permitting requirements. Staff would visit each restaurant to verify compliance with 

current water efficiency requirements before issuing a Water Permit.  

 Consider allowing a percentage of the interior seat count or a specific number of outdoor 

seats to be added at restaurants that do not have outdoor seating as of the date a change in 



policy is implemented. This assumes there is no increase in capacity when a minimal 

number of seats are available for outdoor dining.  

 Determine whether outdoor seating has the same Water Use Capacity (and Water Use 

Factor) as an indoor seat. Depending on the level of investment in outdoor dining 

equipment, the answer to this question varies. Should the District use its current factor for 

all outdoor seating or only for outdoor seating that has the potential for year-round use? 

 Determine if designated dining areas (i.e., fenced, decked, delineated dining space) 

should be viewed differently than casual sidewalk seating.  This question goes to the 

concept that more permanent overhangs, umbrellas and canopies, coupled with outdoor 

heaters make the area usable during most of the year. If so, and if there is a difference in 

one type of seat versus another and what are the defining factors? 

 Consider a future implementation date, such as July 1, 2014, to allow time to 

communicate the requirements and complete permitting, if necessary. 

 Projects in progress (as of a specific date) need to be addressed. There are several 

projects that have been moving through the approval process with the Jurisdictions that 

have not yet obtained a Water Permit. These include the Shake’s new Scales restaurant, 

an expansion to A Taste of Monterey, outdoor seating at Cibo Ristorante Italiano, an 

extensive make-over to the former Latitudes restaurant in Pacific Grove, and probably 

several others. Significant investment has been made in these projects based on the past 

practice that MPWMD does not require a Water Permit for outdoor seating. 

 Discuss a concept to offset additional outdoor seating when all Best Management 

Practices (BMPs) for water use efficiency have been implemented at a restaurant. The 

BMPs would be in addition to the District’s water efficiency requirements for Non-

Residential Users. For example, a restaurant who installs BMPs such as efficient 

dishwashers, hot water systems, disposals, steam ovens and stoves, dipper wells, 

employee training programs, etc. could be considered extremely efficient and allowed to 

add outdoor seating without requiring water from a Jurisdiction’s Allocation or other 

offsets. 

Option 2:  Require all unpermitted outdoor dining seats to obtain a Water Permit or remove 

seats.  

This option responds to the concept that “a seat is a seat” and that the District requires a Water 

Permit for all restaurant seats. To implement this option, restaurants that installed outdoor 

seating between 1985 and today would have to obtain either an Allocation from the Jurisdiction 

or would have to establish sufficient Water Credit to offset the seating and obtain a Water 

Permit. 

 The Water Demand Committee discussed a potential option that if a restaurant could 

demonstrate actual current water use within the estimated Water Use Capacity shown on 

the Water Permit, it would be entitled to a permit for existing outdoor seating. 

Unfortunately, the District does not have Water Permits or seat counts for many 

restaurants, making this a difficult option to implement. The billing allotments that Cal-



Am used for ratemaking purposes between 2001 and 2012 were confidential and self-

reported records. Cal-Am has since changed its billing system and no longer maintains 

seat count information. Another challenge would be customer access to Cal-Am water 

records, as they are proprietary and only available to the current account holder. That 

account holder could be a landlord or a previous tenant. The current occupant may not 

have access to this information. 

 Requiring all unpermitted outdoor dining seats to obtain a Water Permit or remove seats 

is problematic for a number of reasons:  

 The District does not have adequate records to determine the number of outdoor 

restaurant seats that have been added through the years.  

 The Jurisdictions do not have water available to permit all outdoor seating that has 

been added in the past three decades.  

 In some cases, the proprietors could have obtained a Water Permit for outdoor 

seating, but District staff would not have issued a permit (due to the Rappa’s appeal 

decision).  

 Many restaurants have invested significant dollars in outdoor comfort equipment and 

seating and would not have done so if there was a requirement to obtain a Water 

Permit first.  

 Staff has not issued Water Credit for outdoor seating removed during this time. 

Option 3:  Maintain but clarify the current practice. The current practice allows outdoor seating 

as an associated use of the interior seat count (Water Use Capacity) and that there is no 

Intensification in Use as a result of outdoor seating. This option recognizes that most restaurants 

do not operate at capacity, and there is sufficient Water Use Capacity in the interior seat count to 

accommodate outdoor dining.   

EXHIBITS 

18-A Zimmerman Submission 

18-B Narigi Submission 

18-C Background Related to Outdoor Seating 
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EXHIBIT 18-A







EXHIBIT 18-B



EXHIBIT 18-C 

 

Background Information for Outdoor Seating Staff Report 

 

BACKGROUND:  As early as 2001, staff noticed an increase in outdoor seating and questioned 

whether Board policy should be changed. The situation was brought to the attention of the Water 

Demand Committee, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), and the combined TAC/Policy 

Advisory Committee (PAC). These committees reviewed this topic in 2001and took no action. It 

was discussed again in 2003, 2012, and 2013. Each time, there was no change to the existing 

practice to permit restaurant seating based on indoor seating capacity and that outdoor seating 

neither resulted in a debit nor a credit. 

Restaurant Factor 

The factor for restaurant seats is 0.02 acre-foot per seat. This factor is based on a regional 

average for full service restaurants and was last updated in 1991. The factor was originally used 

to assess the Water Use Capacity to determine the appropriate Capacity Fee for new or 

expanding restaurants. Since 1990, the factor has also been used to determine the appropriate 

amount of water to deduct from a Jurisdiction’s Allocation when a Water Permit is issued. The 

samples used to establish the factor included restaurants that mostly offered two meals per day, 

and at least two had outdoor seating at that time, although it is unclear whether the seat count 

reported in the study included the outdoor seating. The information used to assess the factor did 

not consider the level of business or the number of days the restaurant was open. A review of the 

factor by A&N Technical Services in 2011 suggested that current restaurant use is within 0.02 

af/seat, but further review would be necessary to substantiate a change to the factor. 

 

Jurisdiction as Gatekeeper 

The District’s Water Permit process largely relies on the Jurisdiction as “gatekeeper” of its water 

Allocation. The Jurisdiction, typically through its building department, sends projects that 

require Water Permits to the District to obtain a permit prior to issuance of a building permit. In 

the case of outdoor dining, Jurisdictional involvement varies by city from having significant 

oversight (in the case of dining along Alvarado Street and other areas that require encroachment 

permits), to having no oversight or requirement for review. In the latter case, there is no trigger 

that would notify a restaurateur to contact the District. Tenant improvement plans may or may 

not provide outdoor seating schematics. Communication with the Jurisdictions will be crucial to 

implementing a successful outdoor dining permitting policy in the future. Even then, there is a 

high likelihood of added seating without a permit, and enforcement will be difficult. 

Previous Committee Review 

Summaries of past discussion are shown below. 

May 11, 2001 – Staff requests direction from GM/Counsel 

Staff requested direction on charging for outdoor restaurant seats as a result of a request for a 

credit analysis at the Barnyard. It was noted that historically, the District has not charged for 

outdoor seating because it was not used year-round or at night when it was cold. New outdoor 

heaters prompted the request for direction. Staff recommended enforcing permit requirement for 

outdoor seating that was in an enclosed area (private area not accessible to general public). 



June 6, 2001 – TAC/PAC 

Staff noted that outdoor seating had increased. Staff asked for guidance from the committee on 

the following items: (1) should a water permit be required for the addition of outdoor seating; 

and (2) should permits be issued only for outside seating in enclosed areas. No formal motion 

was made. During the discussion it was clear that each jurisdiction had its own method of 

permitting outdoor restaurant seating. The following comments were made by committee 

members: (1) The increase in restaurant seating is driven by smoking regulations (1995 & 1998). 

If water use increases significantly in a restaurant as a result of outdoor restaurant seating, the 

District should investigate. (2) This is a case of micro-management of the resource. Unless there 

is evidence of a real problem, this should not be pursued. (3) Outdoor restaurant seating is 

similar to installation of water fountains. No water credit should be given for outdoor restaurant 

seating, only for enclosed seating. 

 

May 14, 2003 – Water Demand Committee 

Chair Erickson stated that this item could be brought forward to a future meeting at the request 

of any committee member. 

 

October 30, 2012 – Water Demand Committee 

The committee discussed the merits and drawbacks of requiring any restaurant that has installed 

outdoor seating to obtain a Water Permit for the increased capacity for water use. The committee 

requested that District staff review this issue with local chambers of commerce before taking 

further action. 

 

January 17, 2013 -- TAC 

Staff gave a presentation that offered suggestions for permitting outdoor restaurant seating.  A 

summary of her presentation is on file at the District office and can be viewed on the MPWMD 

website.  The committee provided the following comments. (a) Outdoor seating will be utilized 

on a seasonal basis, so a factor of .01 could be assigned for each seat. (b) The amount of water 

used for outdoor seating is minimal, and the water credit offered for removal of those seats 

would be minimal so adding a new rule will have little effect. (c) Water utilized for outdoor 

restaurant seating may not be minimal and could affect the community’s ability to remain within 

water production limits.  (d) Cleanliness is an issue, storm water regulations prohibit hosing off 

sidewalk areas. (e) Opposed to creation of new regulations. The permitting process for 

commercial projects is rigorous without considering outdoor seating. (f) If rationing were 

implemented, this would be a moot point because restaurants would be required to keep water 

use at a specific level. (g) The additional workload and enforcement required for such a small 

benefit is not warranted when there are more important issues to be addressed. (h) Enforcement 

would be accomplished on evenings and weekends which would be a significant expense for the 

MPWMD. (i) The factor for outdoor seating should be significantly less than .01 per seat. (j) 

Suggest that if seating is increased by 50% or more, then a water permit would be required. (k) 

The MPWMD should reevaluate its current restaurant seat factor. 

   

January 17, 2013 – Water Demand Committee 

Summary of staff presentation:  MPWMD has not enforced Water Permit requirements for 

outdoor seating. In the past, outdoor seating was minimal due to comfort constraints. Smokers 

primarily used outdoor seats. Recent technological improvements (outdoor heaters, heated 



flooring/seating, fire pits, coverings and overhead protection from the elements) have made 

outdoor seating more comfortable year-round. The rules differ in each jurisdiction: Carmel 

requires a Use Permit. Recent outdoor seating additions have been up to 30% of the total seating 

capacity. The county did not report any permitting requirement. Monterey and Pacific Grove 

require encroachment permits only if the seats are in the right of way. Projects are reviewed for 

parking compliance. Seaside does not require permits other than parking review. Staff indicated 

that significant increases in the number of meals/customers that can be served corresponds to an 

increase in water use, but that some of the use may be shifted from indoor to outdoor and water 

consumption for outdoor seats may be less than indoors. Staff also pointed out that permitting 

and enforcement of outdoor seating is problematic: It’s difficult to establish a baseline when 

there is no jurisdictional permitting requirement; Since permits are rarely required, there is a high 

likelihood that outdoor seating would be dramatically inflated to establish the baseline count; 

enforcement would be required, including time to investigate and follow up, often on weekends 

or after normal business hours; and there was a question about equity between Jurisdictions. 

Staff recommended three options for consideration: That the District enforce the Water Permit 

requirement for all outdoor seating in excess of 50% (or some other threshold) of the total 

allowed interior seating or apply a reduced factor for outdoor seating (restaurant seats are 0.02 

af/seat) or maintain the status quo. 

 

The committee discussed the issue of restaurants adding outdoor seating without benefit of a 

water permit. There was no consensus to enforce or further regulate the addition of outdoor 

restaurant seating at this time. If the community were subject to water rationing, it might be 

necessary to take this issue up again. 
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ITEM: ACTION ITEM 

 

19. SELECT SCHEDULE FOR ROTATION OF DIRECTORS INTO THE 

POSITIONS OF BOARD CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014  Budgeted:    N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:  

 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation: The Rules & Regulations Review Committee reviewed this 

item on 12/10/14 and will present its recommendation at the 12/15/14 Board meeting. 

CEQA Compliance: N/A 

 

SUMMARY: Board leadership rotation is governed by Rule 2.5 of the District's Meeting Rule 

(Part 1: General Rules).  Stated simply, annually the Vice Chair becomes the new Chair and 

the new Vice Chair is selected by rotation through Directors’ Divisions 1-5 and then the two 

appointed Directors, repeating.  Two issues have arisen regarding the rotation as established: 

(a) because Divisions 1-2 stand for election at the same time and Divisions 3-5 stand for 

election at the same time, there is a risk that an incoming Chair, Vice Chair, or both could be 

newly elected and have insufficient experience, and (b) once every rotation there will be a 

situation where neither the Chair nor Vice Chair are directly elected to the District board.   

 

In 2015, the Division 2 Director cannot serve as the new Chair due to a lack of experience.  

The next in line, Director Markey, has indicated that she does not desire to serve as Chair or 

Vice Chair.  Hence, a Chair must be elected by a majority and the next in line for Vice Chair, 

Division 3, would serve as Vice Chair.  Due to these circumstances, there may be an 

opportunity to realign the rotation at this time. 

 

Shown below are three options for rotation that were presented to the Rules and Regulations 

Review committee for consideration. 

 
If Division 1 is elected Chair: 

 

 

Div. 1 - Lewis (Chair) 

Div. 4 - Byrne (Vice Chair) 

Mayor Appointee - Pendergrass 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Div. 2 - Clarke 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

  Div. 3 - Markey 

If Division 4 or 5 is elected 

Chair: 

 

Div. 4 or 5 - (Chair) 

Div. 1 or 2 - Committee to 

recommend (Vice Chair) 

Mayor Appointee - Pendergrass 

Div. 4 or 5 - Other 

Div. 1 or 2 - Other 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

Div. 3 - Markey 

If Appointed Director is 

elected Chair: 

 

Appointee (Chair) 

Div. 4 - Byrne (Vice Chair) 

Div. 1 or 2 - Committee to 

recommend 

Appointee - Other 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Div. 1 or 2 - Other 

Div. 3 - Markey 
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Should the outcome of the elected Chair for 2015 result in Director Markey deciding to assume 

the position of Vice Chair, then none of these rotation alignments shall become effective. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board should receive the recommendation from the Rules and 

Regulations Review Committee and then decide by motion the preferred methodology for 

selection of the Board Chair and Vice Chair.   

 

DISCUSSION:  At the start of the 2014 calendar year the rotation was as follows. 

 

Div. 1 - Lewis (Chair) 

Div. 2 - Thayer (Vice Chair) 

Div. 3 - Markey 

Div. 4 - Byrne 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

Mayor Appointee – Pendergrass 

 

Director Lewis chose not to serve as Chair, so pursuant to Rule 2.5 the next in line would be 

selected to serve, but unfortunately the Division 2 Director did not meet the 12-month 

experience requirement of the Rule, so the Board elected Director Potter to serve as Chair for 

the year. 

 

At this time, with Division 2 unable to serve, the rotation would result in the following. 

 

2015 
Elected Chair 

Div. 3 - Markey (Vice Chair) 

Div. 4 - Byrne 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

Mayor Appointee - Pendergrass 

Div. 1 - Lewis 

2016 
Div. 3 - Markey (Chair) 

Div. 4 - Byrne (Vice Chair) 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

Mayor Appointee - Pendergrass 

Div. 1 - Lewis 

Div. 2 - Clarke 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

None 
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ITEM: ACTION ITEM Revised 12/11/2014 
 

19. SELECT SCHEDULE FOR ROTATION OF DIRECTORS INTO THE 

POSITIONS OF BOARD CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014  Budgeted:    N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:  

 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation: N/A 

CEQA Compliance: N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Board leadership rotation is governed by Rule 2.5 of the District's Meeting Rules 

(Part 1: General Rules).  Stated simply, annually the Vice Chair becomes the new Chair and the 

new Vice Chair is selected by rotation through Directors’ Divisions 1-5 and then the two 

appointed Directors, repeating.  Two issues have arisen regarding the rotation as established: (a) 

because Divisions 1-2 stand for election at the same time and Divisions 3-5 stand for election at 

the same time, there is a risk that an incoming Chair, Vice Chair, or both could be newly elected 

and have insufficient experience, and (b) once every rotation there will be a situation where 

neither the Chair nor Vice Chair are directly elected to the District board.   

 

This year there is some confusion on interpreting Rule 2.5.  General Counsel points out that the 

language of the Rule states “the Vice-Chair shall be elected Chair” which, in this case is Director 

Markey.  However, at the October Board meeting Director Markey was appointed Vice-Chair to 

fill out the remainder of Director Thayer’s term for two months on an interim basis.  Normally, 

at this time the rotation for 2015 would have resulted in Division 2 Director Clarke moving into 

the Chair position.  However, the Division 2 Director could not serve as the new Chair due to a 

lack of experience under Rule 2.5, thus requiring an election of a Chair for the year from among 

the other Directors.   

 

Additionally, Director Lewis who declined the Chair position due to health concerns last year 

has expressed interest in serving as Chair for 2015.  Existing Rule 2.5 language states that “The 

declining Director shall have an opportunity to serve once the entire rotation schedule is 

complete and has returned to the Division that opted-out.” 

 

Due to these circumstances, the Board should consider action to be taken for the current year and 

determine if it desires to realign the rotation at this time. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Rules and Regulations Committee met on December 9, 2014 and 

recommends the Board suspend the existing Rule 2.5 and amend the Rule to adopt a rotation to 

be revised as follows: 

 



2015 

Div. 1 - Lewis (Chair) 

Div. 4 - Byrne (Vice Chair) 

Mayor Appointee - Pendergrass 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Div. 2 - Clarke 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

Div. 3 - Markey 

 

If Rule 2.5 is not suspended and General Counsel’s interpretation is followed, Director Markey 

would be elected Chair.  If the Board does so and also determines it desires to keep the existing 

rotation intact, then the rotation would be as follows: 

 

2015 
Div. 3 - Markey (Chair) 

Div. 4 - Byrne (Vice Chair) 

Div. 5 - Brower 

Supervisor Appointee - Potter 

Mayor Appointee - Pendergrass 

Div. 1 - Lewis 

Div. 2 – Clarke 

 

The Board should determine whether (a) it will suspend Rule 2.5, adopt an amended rotation and 

confirm the action under agenda item 20 (b) follow General Counsel’s interpretation and proceed 

to agenda item 20, or (c) some other approach.  

 

EXHIBIT   
19-A MPWMD Meeting Rule 2.5 
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EXHIBIT 19-A 

 

 

 

RULE 2.5: ROTATION OF VICE CHAIR INTO THE POSITION OF CHAIR 

 

The Board shall rotate its leadership among the seven (7) members.  To encourage 

rotation of the Chair, each December when the annual election of Board officers 

is conducted, or when a vacancy in the position of Chair occurs, the Vice-Chair 

shall be elected as Chair.  Beginning in December 2013, the following rotation 

shall be used to select the next Vice-Chair.   

  

  Division 2 Director 

 Division 3 Director 

 Division 4 Director 

 Division 5 Director 

 Monterey County Board of Supervisors Representative 

 Mayoral Representative 

 Division 1 Director 

 

Thereafter, the rotation shall return to the top of this list. 

 

Should the current Vice Chair decline to serve as incoming Chair, the Board shall 

select the Director next in rotation to serve as Chair.  Should the Director next in 

rotation for the position of Vice Chair decline to serve in that capacity, the Board 

shall select the next Director in rotation to serve as Vice Chair.  The declining 

Director shall have an opportunity to serve once the entire rotation schedule is 

complete and has returned to the Division that opted-out.  If the Chair has served 

less than 12 months at the time the annual December election of Board officers is 

conducted, the Board shall, by majority vote, elect a Chair to serve for that year, 

and thereafter the Chair rotation shall return to where it had left off.  
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ITEM: ACTION ITEM 

 

20. CONDUCT ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS FOR 2015 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.:    

 

Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Rule 2 of the MPWMD Board Meeting Rules states that in December of each 

year, the Board will elect a Chair, Vice-Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary.  The rules also specify 

that election of officers shall be the final item on the December meeting agenda.  The officers 

elected at the meeting will assume their offices immediately following the December Board 

meeting.  The term of office is twelve months.  Under agenda item 19, the Board of Directors 

was asked to select a schedule for rotation of directors into the position of Board Chair and Vice 

Chair for 2015. 

 

It has been the Board’s past practice to elect the General Manager to serve as Secretary and the 

Administrative Services Division (ASD) Manager to serve as Treasurer.  Therefore, staff 

recommends that the Board elect General Manager David Stoldt to serve as Secretary and Suresh 

Prasad ASD Manager to serve as Treasurer in 2015.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:   The Board should elect the Board Chair and Vice Chair according to 

the procedure agreed to under agenda item 19.  In addition, staff recommends that the General 

Manager be elected to serve as Secretary and the ASD Manager be elected to the position of 

Treasurer for 2015. 

 

EXHIBITS 

None 
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 

 

21. LETTERS RECEIVED 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

A list of letters that were submitted to the Board of Directors or General Manager and received 

between November 13, 2014 and December 8, 2014 is shown below.  The purpose of including a 

list of these letters in the Board packet is to inform the Board and interested citizens.  Copies of 

the letters are available for public review at the District office.  If a member of the public would 

like to receive a copy of any letter listed, please contact the District office.  Reproduction costs 

will be charged.   The letters can also be downloaded from the District’s web site at 

www.mpwmd.net.    
 
 

Author Addressee Date Topic 

Duffner, Toyoshima, 

Padilla and Hernandez 

MPWMD Board 11/17/14 Funding Farms to Save Cities:  An Idea on Water 

Recycling from CSUMB Students 

Carmelita Garcia MPWMD Board 11/15/14 Item #15, Consider Adoption of Policy on Outdoor 

Restaurant Seating Continued to December 12, 2014 

Mark Brodeur MPWMD Board 11/12/14 Water Permit Requirements for Outdoor Seating 

Chuck Della Sala MPWMD Board 11/12/14 Outdoor Seating and Water Credits 
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 

 

22. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

Attached for your review as Exhibits 22-A through 22-D are final minutes of the committee 

meetings listed below.  

 

EXHIBIT 

22-A Final Minutes of November 13, 2014 Water Demand Committee Meeting 

22-B Final Minutes of November 7, 2014 Administrative Committee Meeting 

22-C Final Minutes of October 30, 2014 Public Outreach Committee Meeting 

22-D Final Minutes of October 17, 2013 Technical Advisory Committee Meeting 
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EXHIBIT 22-A 

   

FINAL  MINUTES 

Water Demand Committee of the 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

November 13, 2014 

   

Call to Order   

The meeting was called to order at 1:34 pm in the MPWMD conference room. 

   

Committee members present: Kristi Markey, Chair  

 Jeanne Byrne  

 Brenda Lewis (participated by telephone) 

   

Staff members present: David J. Stoldt, General Manager 

 Stephanie Pintar, Water Demand Division Manager 

 Arlene Tavani, Executive Assistant 

   

Comments from the Public: No comments. 

  

Action Items  

1. Consider Adoption of September 24, 2014 Committee Meeting Minutes 

 On a motion by Byrne and second of Lewis, the committee approved the September 23, 

2014 minutes on a vote of 3 – 0 by Byrne, Lewis and Markey. 

  

2. Develop Recommendation to the Board on Water Permit Requirements for 

Outdoor Seating 

 On a motion by Byrne and second of Lewis, the committee recommended that the Board 

of Directors defer this item to December 2014, and that the staff note accompanying this 

recommendation include the committee members’ remarks.  The motion was approved 

on a vote of 3 – 0 by Byrne, Lewis and Markey. 

 

Public comment:  (a) Mike Zimmerman, Cannery Row Company, stated that outdoor 

seating is key to the economic revitalization of Monterey and Pacific Grove.  He said that 

the visitor serving industry could provide evidence that additional outdoor seating does 

not have an effect on overall water use.  (b) Luke Coletti, resident of Pacific Grove, 

stated that if additional seats are added to a restaurant, the capacity for water use has been 

expanded.  It would be responsible for the Water Management District to require that 

business owners pay a fee for additional demand that is created by outdoor seating. (c) 

Carmelita Garcia, resident of Pacific Grove, stated that outdoor restaurant seating 

should require a water permit.  Restaurants with outdoor seating should be audited to 

determine if retrofits can be completed to offset the water use from those seats. A use 

permit is required for the addition of outdoor seating; therefore a permit from the Water 

Management District should follow. 

http://www.mpwmd.net/
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During the discussion of this item Stoldt advised that the Technical Advisory Committee 

had recommended that this issue be removed from the November 17, 2014 Board 

meeting agenda and considered at a later date.  The Water Demand Committee members 

expressed the following opinions:  (a) Any restaurant that submits an application for 

outdoor seating should be inspected to ensure that all water efficiency requirements have 

been accomplished.  (b) A restaurant is permitted for a specific number of seats, whether 

inside or outside.  Those permit conditions must be enforced.  A potential compromise 

would be to require that all Best Management Practices and water efficiency 

requirements be accomplished. (c) A new rule could be established that requires a permit 

for outdoor seating as of a specific date, including projects in process. (d) Our current 

rules require permits for restaurant seating, but we had not enforced that upon outdoor 

seating.  The situation has changed.  Restaurant owners should be advised of the 

requirement to permit all restaurant seats and that they should not exceed the number of 

seats authorized by their permits. (e) Future water permits should show indoor and 

outdoor seating. 

  

Discussion Items 

3. Report on Monterey Institute of International Studies Research Regarding Water 

Rationing 

 A group of graduate students at California State University Monterey Bay are taking up 

the topic of “allocation of scarce resources” as their year-long project.  They will review 

our rationing program and survey others.  We have identified a series of policy questions 

for them to analyze.  They will report back in late January, but the results of the study 

will not be available until May 2015.  

  

Other Items 

 Locke advised the committee about Rebate Program funding.  The committee asked staff 

to report to the Board. 

 

Public comment:  (a) Luke Coletti noted that the Water Management District’s rebate 

application should state that rebates will be issued only while funds are available.  (b) 

Mike Zimmerman advised that funding should be identified for the rebate applications 

in process, as denying payment will adversely affect the Water Management District’s 

credibility in the community.  

  

Set Next Meeting Date 

The next meeting was scheduled for December 5, 2014 at 1:30 pm. 

  

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:25 pm. 
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EXHIBIT 22-B 

 

FINAL MINUTES 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Administrative Committee 

November 7, 2014 

 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 3:30 PM in the District Conference Room.    

 

Committee members present:  David Pendergrass 

Brenda Lewis 

 

Committee members absent:  Kristi Markey 

 

Staff present: Suresh Prasad, Administrative Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer 

 Joe Oliver, Water Resources Manager 

 Sara Reyes, Office Services Supervisor 

  

Oral Communications 

None 

 

Adopt Minutes of October 13, 2014 Committee Meeting 

On a motion by Pendergrass and second by Lewis, the minutes of the October 13, 2014 meeting 

were approved on a vote of 2– 0.    

 

Items on Board Agenda for November 17, 2014 

 

Consider Approval of Expenditure for Purchase of Surface Water Computation Software 

On a motion by Pendergrass and second by Lewis, the committee voted 2 to 0 to recommend the 

Board authorize the General Manager to approve the purchase of Hydstra Time Series Software 

by KISTERS North America, Inc. at a cost not-to-exceed $10,000. 

 

Consider Approval of Budgeted Funds for IT Hardware Replacement 

On a motion by Pendergrass and second by Lewis, the committee voted 2 to 0 to recommend the 

Board approve expenditures not-to-exceed $41,700 to purchase: Promise VESS 2600 Network 

Attached Storage ($12,900), NetApp Expansion unit ($19,000), Workstation refresh (7 

units/$7,300) and GIS/GS Flow computer workstations ($2,500). 

 

Consider Approval of First Quarter Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Investment Report 

On a motion by Pendergrass and second by Lewis, the committee voted 2 to 0 to recommend the 

Board approve the First Quarter Fiscal Year 2014-2015 investment report. 

 

 

 

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Final Minutes – MPWMD Administrative Committee – November 7, 2014 

 

 

 

 

  

Consider Approval of Treasurer’s Report for September 2014 

On a motion by Pendergrass and second by Lewis, the committee voted 2 to 0 to recommend the 

Board adopt the September 2014 Treasurer’s Report and financial statements, and ratification of 

the disbursements made during the month. 

 

Receive and File First Quarter Financial Activity Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

On a motion by Pendergrass and second by Lewis, the committee voted 2 to 0 to recommend the 

Board approve receive and file the First Quarter Financial Activity Report for Fiscal Year 2014-

2015. 

 

Other Business 

 

Receive First Quarter Legal Services Activity Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

This report was presented as information only.  No action was taken by the committee. 

 

Review Draft Agenda for November 17, 2014 Regular Board Meeting  

Prasad reported an item will be added to the Consent Calendar (add title) and also stated Item 21 

under the Informational Items/Staff Reports, will be presented in December.  The committee 

made no changes to the agenda. 

 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:50  PM.             
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EXHIBIT 22-C 

 

FINAL MINUTES 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Public Outreach Committee 

October 30, 2014 
  

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 1:35 pm in the Water Management District conference room. 

 

Committee members present: Kristi Markey 

Brenda Lewis  

David Pendergrass  

  

Committee members absent: None 

  

District staff members present: David Stoldt, General Manager  

Stephanie Pintar, Water Demand Manager   

Arlene Tavani, Executive Assistant 

  

Others present: Steve Thomas, Thomas Brand Consulting 

  

Comments from the Public:  No comments presented. 

 

Action Items 

1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of September 23, 2014 Committee Meeting 

 On a motion by Markey and second of Lewis, the committee approved the September 23, 2014 

committee minutes on a unanimous vote of 3 – 0. 

  

Discussion Items 

2. Update on Public Outreach Activities in Progress 

 Steve Thomas reviewed a list of projects the public outreach team was working on.   

  

3. Progress Report on Pure Monterey Project 

 Stoldt reported the following.  A representative from the Monterey Regional Water Pollution 

Control Agency and David Stoldt will meet with officials from the State Water Resources 

Control Board and the Natural Resources Agency next week to discuss grant funding for local 

projects.  They will also brief the officials on the Pure Water Monterey Project.  The goal is to 

bring this project to the attention of high-level officials who can instruct lower-level staff to 

support the project.  The EIR on the Pure Water Monterey project is scheduled for release in 

March 2015.  Public outreach to Salinas Valley interests will begin in January in order to obtain 

support for the seven agreements that must be signed related to Pure Water Monterey. Steve 

Thomas and Mark Milan will work on educating industry insiders outside of Monterey County 

about the Pure Water Monterey project.  They will also develop a fact sheet for staff and board 

members, and update the Pure Water Monterey website.  It is anticipated that the Water 

Management District’s mid-year budget adjustment increase for Pure Water Monterey will be 

$1.5 million.  Staff will request funds to contract for outreach at the federal level in order to 

obtain federal grants. 
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4. Review Communications with Restaurant Owners re Outdoor Seating 

 The committee reviewed a draft letter submitted by staff and provided comments.  A revised 

letter will be distributed.  On November 13, 2013,  the Water Demand and Technical Advisory 

committees will discuss development of a policy regarding outdoor restaurant seating.  The 

Board of Directors is scheduled to consider the issue on November 17, 2014. 

  

5. Discuss Development of Small Water Agencies Association 

 Stoldt reported that Tom Quinn, Executive Director of the Association of Water Agencies, 

expressed reservations about formation of this association.  Stoldt is concerned that there will be 

little incentive for small agencies to work cooperatively because they will be in competition for 

use of Proposition 1 grant funds.  Stoldt stated that it would be best, at this time, to focus on 

legislative opportunities where there are common interests and coordinate with other agencies 

on those issues.  There was consensus that a contact list of small California water agencies 

should be developed.  When another water bond is proposed, that group could be organized to 

lobby legislators for the establishment of substantial grant funds for small agencies. 

  

Schedule Next Meeting Date 

The meeting was set for November 25, 2014 at 2 pm. 

  

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:45 pm. 
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EXHIBIT 22-D 

 

FINAL MINUTES 

Technical Advisory Committee of the 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

October 17, 2013 

   

Call to Order   

The meeting was called to order at 9:35 am in the MPWMD conference room. 

  

Committee members present:   

 City of Del Rey Oaks Daniel Dawson 

 City of Monterey Todd Bennett, Vice Chair 

 City of Pacific Grove Sarah Hardgrave, Chair 

 City of Sand City Charles Pooler 

 City of Seaside Tim O’Halloran 

 Monterey Peninsula 

Airport District 

Desmond Johnston (Arrived at 10:10 

am) 

   

Committee members absent:  City of Carmel-by-Sea Marc Wiener 

 County of Monterey Rob Johnson 

   

Staff members present: David J. Stoldt, General Manager 

 Stephanie Pintar, Water Demand Division Manager 

 Larry Hampson, Planning & Engineering Division Manager 

 Arlene Tavani, Executive Assistant 

   

District Counsel present: David C. Laredo  

   

Comments from the Public: No comments. 

  

Discussion Items  

1. Discuss Pipeline Routes for the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project 

 Rick Svindland, California American Water explained that two pipeline routes have been 

developed for review in the water supply project EIR.   Approximately 70% of the route 

originally considered for the project is within the Coastal Zone.  A modified route has been 

developed that is outside of the Coastal Zone, which would simplify the permitting process.  

However, one point along the route is too high at elevation 345, so further modifications are 

needed. Ian Crooks of Cal-Am provided additional information on the proposed routes.  He noted 

that a third option might also be developed that utilized the original pipeline route through 

Monterey, and added the modified route along General Jim Moore Blvd. The goal is to lay the 

pipeline through already disturbed corridors, and minimize impacts on undisturbed areas. Maps 

of the proposed pipeline routes can be viewed on the MPWMD website.  Committee members 

were asked to provide comments to Cal-Am and Erik Zigas of Environmental Science 

Associates. 
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2. Update on MPWMD Involvement with Joint MPWMD/MRWPCA Groundwater 

Replenishment Project 

 General Manager Stoldt’s presentation to the committee can be viewed on the MPWMD website.    

  

3. Update on Proposed Stormwater Master Study 

 Hampson provided a summary of the conceptual plan.  The Monterey Regional Water Pollution 

Control Agency waste treatment plant has a 30 million gallon per day (MGD) capacity, but due to 

water conservation measures, less than 18 MGD is processed.  The cities of Monterey and Pacific 

Grove have proposed that their stormwater flows be processed at the treatment plant.  A study 

must be done to determine the amount of stormwater available for distribution, and then a plan 

must be developed to capture, store and deliver the stormwater to the treatment plant.   A grant 

for $75,000 in matching funds is available from the State Water Resources Control Board that 

might be used for a stormwater availability study, if the funds are not limited to wastewater 

treatment projects.   

  

Action Items 

4. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the July 23, 2013 Committee Meeting 

 On a motion by O’Halloran and second of Bennett, minutes of the July 23, 2013 committee 

meeting were adopted on a unanimous vote of 6 – 0. 

  

 Dawson departed from the meeting at 10:40 am. 

  

5. Consider Recommendation to the Board on First Reading of Ordinance No. 156, Clarifying 

and Amending Terms and Procedures related to Water Permits, Water Use Credits, 

Rebates and Landscape Water Audits 

 Johnston offered a motion that was seconded by Pooler to recommend that the Board of Directors 

adopt the first reading Ordinance No. 156.  The motion was approved on a unanimous vote of 5 – 

0 by Bennett, Hardgrave, Pooler, O’Halloran and Johnston.  Dawson was absent for the vote. 

  

6. Consider Adoption of 2014 Committee Meeting Schedule 

 On a motion by Hardgrave and second of O’Halloran, the 2014 meeting schedule was adopted on 

a vote of 5 – 0 by Bennett, Hardgrave, Pooler, O’Halloran and Johnston.  Dawson was absent for 

the vote. 

  

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:50 am. 
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS 

 

23. MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program:  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Gabriela Ayala Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY: As of November 30, 2014, a total of 22.833 acre-feet (6.7%) of the Paralta Well 

Allocation remained available for use by the Jurisdictions.  Pre-Paralta water in the amount of 

35.861 acre-feet is available to the Jurisdictions, and 30.984 acre-feet is available as public water 

credits. 

  

Exhibit 23-A shows the amount of water allocated to each Jurisdiction from the Paralta Well 

Allocation, the quantities permitted in November 2014 (“changes”), and the quantities 

remaining.  The Paralta Allocation had no debits in November 2014. 

 

Exhibit 23-A also shows additional water available to each of the Jurisdictions and the 

information regarding the Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula (Holman Highway 

Facility).  Additional water from expired or canceled permits that were issued before January 

1991 are shown under “PRE-Paralta.”  Water credits used from a Jurisdiction’s “public credit” 

account are also listed.  Transfers of Non-Residential Water Use Credits into a Jurisdiction’s 

Allocation are included as “public credits.”  Exhibit 23-B shows water available to Pebble 

Beach Company and Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties, including Macomber Estates, 

Griffin Trust. Another table in this exhibit shows the status of Sand City Water Entitlement. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The District’s Water Allocation Program, associated resource system supply 

limits, and Jurisdictional Allocations have been modified by a number of key ordinances.  These 

key ordinances are listed in Exhibit 23-C. 

 

EXHIBITS 

23-A Monthly Allocation Report 

23-B Monthly Entitlement Report 

23-C District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
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EXHIBIT 23-A 
 

MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 

Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of November 2014 

 

 
Jurisdiction 

 

Paralta 

Allocation* 

 

 

Changes 

 

Remaining 

 

PRE- 

Paralta 

Credits 

 

Changes 

 

Remaining 

 

Public 

Credits 

 

 

Changes 

 

Remaining 

 

Total  
Available 

 
Airport District 

 
8.100 

 
 0.000 

 
5.197 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
5.197 

 
Carmel-by-the-Sea 

 
19.410 

 
0.000 

 
1.397 

 
1.081 

 
0.000 

 
1.081 

 
0.910 

 
0.000 

 
0.182 

 
2.660 

 
Del Rey Oaks 

 
8.100 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.440 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
Monterey 

 
76.320 

 
0.000 

 
0.193 

 
50.659 

 
0.000 

 
0.030 

 
38.121 

 
1.590 

 
3.857 

 
4.080 

 
Monterey County 

 
87.710 

 
0.000 

 
10.345 

 
13.080 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
7.827 

 
0.000 

 
2.200 

 
12.545 

 
Pacific Grove 

 
25.770 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
1.410 

 
0.000 

 
0.312 

 
15.874 

 
0.000  

 
0.228 

 
0.540 

 
Sand City 

 
51.860 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.838 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
24.717 

 
0.000 

 
23.373 

 
23.373 

 
Seaside 

 
65.450 

 
0.000 

 
5.701 

 
34.438 

 
0.000 

 
34.438 

 
2.693 

 
0.000 

 
1.144 

 
41.283 

 
TOTALS 

 
342.720 

 
0.000 

 
22.833 

 
101.946 

 
0.000 

 
35.861 

 
90.142 

 
1.590 

 
30.984 

 
89.678 

 

 

 

 
Allocation Holder 

 

Water Available 
 

 

Changes this Month 

 

Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 

Remaining Water 

Available 

 
Quail Meadows 

 
33.000 

 
0.000 

 
32.229 

 
0.771 

 
Water West 

 
12.760 

 
0.000 

 
8.422 

 
4.338 

 

 

 

* Does not include 15.280 Acre-Feet from the District Reserve prior to adoption of Ordinance No. 73. 
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EXHIBIT 23-B 

 
MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 

ENTITLEMENTS 

Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of November 2014 

 

Recycled Water Project Entitlements  

 
Entitlement Holder 

 

Entitlement 
 

 

Changes this Month 

 

Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 

Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
Pebble Beach Co. 

1 
 

242.850 
 

0.100 
 

11.572 
 

231.278 
 
Del Monte Forest Benefited 

Properties
 2 

(Pursuant to Ord No. 109) 

 
122.150 

 
0.050 

 
37.010 

 

 
85.140 

 
Macomber Estates 

 
10.000 

 
0.000 

 
9.595 

  
0.405 

 
Griffin Trust 

 
5.000 

 
0.000 

 
4.809 

 
0.191 

CAWD/PBCSD Project 

Totals 

380.000 0.150 62.986 317.014 

 

 
Entitlement Holder 

 

Entitlement 
 

 

Changes this Month 

 

Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 

Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
City of Sand City 

 
165.00 

 
0.000 

 
3.319 

 
161.681 

 

                                                 
Increases in the Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties Entitlement will result in reductions in the Pebble Beach Co. Entitlement. 
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EXHIBIT 23-C 

  

District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 

  

Ordinance No. 1 was adopted in September 1980 to establish interim municipal water allocations 

based on existing water use by the jurisdictions.  Resolution 81-7 was adopted in April 1981 to 

modify the interim allocations and incorporate projected water demands through the year 2000.  

Under the 1981 allocation, Cal-Am’s annual production limit was set at 20,000 acre-feet. 

  

Ordinance No. 52 was adopted in December 1990 to implement the District’s water allocation 

program, modify the resource system supply limit, and to temporarily limit new uses of water.  As a 

result of Ordinance No. 52, a moratorium on the issuance of most water permits within the District 

was established.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 52 reduced Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 

16,744 acre-feet. 

  

Ordinance No. 70 was adopted in June 1993 to modify the resource system supply limit, establish a 

water allocation for each of the jurisdictions within the District, and end the moratorium on the 

issuance of water permits.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 70 was based on development of the Paralta 

Well in the Seaside Groundwater Basin and increased Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 17,619 

acre-feet.  More specifically, Ordinance No. 70 allocated 308 acre-feet of water to the jurisdictions 

and 50 acre-feet to a District Reserve for regional projects with public benefit. 

  

Ordinance No. 73 was adopted in February 1995 to eliminate the District Reserve and allocate the 

remaining water equally among the eight jurisdictions.  Of the original 50 acre-feet that was 

allocated to the District Reserve, 34.72 acre-feet remained and was distributed equally (4.34 acre-

feet) among the jurisdictions. 

  

Ordinance No. 74 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of toilet retrofit water 

savings on single-family residential properties.  The reinvested retrofit credits must be repaid by the 

jurisdiction from the next available water allocation and are limited to a maximum of 10 acre-feet.  

This ordinance sunset in July 1998.   

  

Ordinance No. 75 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of water saved through 

toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned and operated facilities.  

Fifteen percent of the savings are set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal 

and the remainder of the savings are credited to the jurisdictions allocation.  This ordinance sunset 

in July 1998.  

  

Ordinance No. 83 was adopted in April 1996 and set Cal-Am’s annual production limit at 17,621 

acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production limit at 3,046 acre-feet.  The modifications to the 

production limit were made based on the agreement by non-Cal-Am water users to permanently 

reduce annual water production from the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer in exchange for water 

service from Cal-Am.  As part of the agreement, fifteen percent of the historical non-Cal-Am 

production was set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal. 

  



Ordinance No. 87 was adopted in February 1997 as an urgency ordinance establishing a 

community benefit allocation for the planned expansion of the Community Hospital of the 

Monterey Peninsula (CHOMP).  Specifically, a special reserve allocation of 19.60 acre-feet of 

production was created exclusively for the benefit of CHOMP.  With this new allocation, Cal-Am’s 

annual production limit was increased to 17,641 acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production 

limit remained at 3,046 acre-feet. 

  

Ordinance No. 90 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 

toilet retrofit water savings on single-family residential properties for 90-days following the 

expiration of Ordinance No. 74.  This ordinance sunset in September 1998. 

  

Ordinance No. 91 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 

water saved through toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned 

and operated facilities.   

  

Ordinance No. 90 and No. 91 were challenged for compliance with CEQA and nullified by the 

Monterey Superior Court in December 1998. 

  

Ordinance No. 109 was adopted on May 27, 2004, revised Rule 23.5 and adopted additional 

provisions to facilitate the financing and expansion of the CAWD/PBCSD Recycled Water Project. 

 

Ordinance No. 132 was adopted on January 24, 2008, established a Water Entitlement for Sand 

City and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits.  
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS  

 

24. WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM REPORT   

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

 

Prepared By: Michael Boles Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

I. MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION RETROFIT PROGRAM 

District Regulation XIV requires the retrofit of water fixtures upon Change of Ownership or Use 

with High Efficiency Toilets (HET) (1.28 gallons-per-flush), 2.0 gallons-per-minute (gpm) 

Showerheads, 2.2 gpm faucet aerators, and Rain Sensors on all automatic Irrigation Systems.  

Property owners must certify the Site meets the District’s water efficiency standards by 

submitting a Water Conservation Certification Form (WCC), and a Site inspection is often 

conducted to verify compliance.   

 

A. Changes of Ownership 

Information is obtained monthly from Realquest.com on properties transferring ownership 

within the District.  The information is entered into the database and compared against the 

properties that have submitted WCCs.  Details on 87 property transfers that occurred in 

November 2014 were entered into the database.    

 

B. Certification  

The District received 55 WCCs between November 1, 2014 and November 30, 2014.  Data 

on ownership, transfer date, and status of water efficiency standard compliance were entered 

into the database. 

 

C. Verification 

In November, 54 inspections were performed to verify compliance with Rule 144 (Retrofit 

Upon Change of Ownership or Use).  Of the 54 inspections performed, 46 (85%) were in 

compliance. One of the properties that passed inspection involved more than visit to verify 

compliance with all water efficiency standards.  

 

District inspectors are tracking toilet replacement with High Efficiency Toilets (HET) in 

place of ULF toilets.  These retrofits are occurring in remodels and new construction, and are 

the toilet of choice for Rule 144 compliance.  State law mandated the sale and installation of 

HET by January 1, 2014, with a phase-in period that began in 2010.  The majority of toilets 

sold in California are HET.  

 

Savings Estimate 

Water savings from HET retrofits triggered by Rule 144 verified in November 2014 are 

estimated at 0.180 acre-feet annually (AFA).  Water savings from retrofits that exceeded 



requirements (i.e., HETs to Ultra High Efficiency Toilets) is estimated at 0.350 AFA (35 

toilets).  Year-to-date estimated savings occurring as a result of toilet retrofits is 13.540 AFA. 

 

D. Water Waste Enforcement 

In response to the State’s drought emergency conservation regulation effective August 1, 

2014, the District has increased its Water Waste enforcement. The District has a Water Waste 

Hotline 831-658-5653 or an online form to report Water Waster occurrences at 

www.mpwmd.net or www.montereywaterinfo.org. There were five Water Waste responses 

during the past month. Most instances were related to irrigation on incorrect days, over-

watering resulting in water running to waste, and use of hoses without positive-action shut 

off nozzles. Most of the District’s responses involved on-site contacts, often providing the 

water user with a free shut off nozzle. In other cases, the property and the property owner 

were mailed Courtesy Notices. There were no repeated incidences that resulted in fines.  

 

II. WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT 

 

A. Permit Processing 

District Rule 23 requires a Water Permit application for all properties that propose to expand 

or modify water use on a Site, including New Construction and Remodels.  District staff 

processed and issued 90 Water Permits in November 2014.  Two Water Permit were issued 

using water entitlements (Macomber, Pebble Beach Company, Griffin Estates, etc).  Twenty 

Water Permits involved a debit to a Public Water Credit Account.   

 

All Water Permit applicants have received a disclaimer informing them of the Cease and 

Desist Order against California American Water and that MPWMD reports Water Permit 

details to California American Water.  Disclaimers will continue to be provided to all Water 

Permit recipients with property supplied by a California American Water Distribution 

System. 

 

District Rule 24-3-A allows the addition of a second Bathroom in an existing Single-Family 

Dwelling on a Single-Family Residential Site. Of the 90 Water Permits issued in November, 

six were issued under this provision. 

 

B. Permit Compliance 

District staff completed 54 Water Permit final inspections during November 2014.  Thirteen 

of the final inspections failed due to unpermitted fixtures. Of the 41 properties that were in 

compliance, 34 passed on the first visit. In addition, six pre-inspections were conducted in 

response to Water Permit applications received by the District. 

 

C. Deed Restrictions 

District staff prepares deed restrictions that are recorded on the property title to provide 

notice of District Rules and Regulations, enforce Water Permit conditions, and provide notice 

of public access to water records.  In April 2001, the District Board of Directors adopted a 

policy regarding the processing of deed restrictions.  In the month of November, the District 

prepared 89 deed restrictions.  Of the 90 Water Permits issued in November, 21 (23%) 

required deed restrictions.  District staff provided Notary services for 49 Water Permits with 

deed restrictions.  

 

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.montereywaterinfo.org/


III.  JOINT MPWMD/CAW REBATE PROGRAM 

 

The Water Conservation Rebate Program for customers of California American Water was 

reinstated as of November 19, 2012, when funding became available. Funding is currently 

nearly expended for this period. District staff has requested additional funding through 

California American Water to continue the program through 2014. Without additional 

funding, the Rebate Program is likely to be suspended for lack of funds before the November 

2014 Board meeting. 

 

Participation in the rebate program is detailed in the following chart. The table below 

indicates the program summary for California American Water Company. 
 

    REBATE PROGRAM SUMMARY November-2014 2014 YTD 1997 - Present 

I Application Summary             

  A.  Applications Received 145 2452 18292 

  B. Applications Approved 127 1975 14309 

  C. Single Family Applications 138 2236 16411 

  D. Multi-Family Applications 4 97 926 

  E. Non-Residential Applications 3 119 200 

II Types of Fixtures Rebated Quantity Paid 
Estimated 

Savings 
    

  A.  SFD HET 11 2,174.00 0.459228 311 2296 

  B. SFD ULF to HET 23 1,150.00 0.230000 418 905 

  C. UHET 1845 332,380.00 18.450000 1896 1909 

  D. SFD HE DW 18 2,250.00 0.054000 227 1819 

  E. SFD HEW 5.0 or less Water Factor 59 29,363.76 0.949900 798 4342 

  F. Instant Access Hot Water Systems 0 0.00   24 168 

  G. On Demand Hot Water-Point of Source 1 100.00   7 50 

  H. Cisterns 4 5,104.25   44 196.72 

  I. Smart Controllers 0 0.00   6 61 

  J. Residential Zero Water Using Urinals 0 0.00   0 2 

  K. Residential Soil Sensors 0 0.00   0 2 

  L. Graywater System 0 0.00   1 2 

  M. Lawn Removal & Replacement 2 3,715.00 0.304630 35 161 

  N. Rotating Sprinkler Nozzles 0 0.00   200 313 

  O. MFD HET 1 168.00 0.041748 20 584 

  P. MFD ULF to HET 0 0.00 0.000000 8 61 

  Q. MFD UHET 0 0.00 0.000000 8 9 

  R. MFD HE DW 0 0.00 0.000000 4 55 

  S. MFD HEW 5.0 or less Water Factor 2 1,000.00 0.032200 46 154 

  T. MFD Common Laundry  0 0.00 0.000000 8 21 

  U. Non-Residential - HET 0 0.00 0.000000 79 620 

  V. Non-Residential - ULF to HET 2 199.00 0.020000 168 208 

  W. Non-Residential - UHET 0 0.00 0.000000 7 67 

  X. Non-Residential HE Dishwasher 0 0.00 0.000000 2 7 

  Y. Non-Residential HEW-Residential Grade 5.0 or less 0 0.00 0.000000 15 94 

  Z. Non-Residential HEW-Commercial Grade 5.0 or less 0 0.00 0.000000 51 82 

  AA. Non-Residential Zero Water Using Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 11 145 

  BB. Non-Residential High Efficiency Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 13 13 

  CC. Non-Residential Ice Machines 0 0.00 0.000000 0 2 

III Rebate Refund           23 

IV Total Dollars Rebated   $377,604.01    $1,117,707.83 $4,268,983.42 

V Estimated Water Savings in Acre-Feet Annually*       20.541706 67.489 445.671 

* Retrofit savings are estimated at  0.041748 AF/HET; 0.01 AF/UHET; 0.01 AF/ULF to HET; 0.003 AF/dishwasher, 0.0161 AF/residential washer; 

0.116618 AF/commercial washer; 0.0082 AF/100 square feet of lawn removal. 
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 

 

25. CARMEL RIVER FISHERY REPORT FOR NOVEMBER 2014 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

   

Prepared By: Beverly Chaney Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

AQUATIC HABITAT AND FLOW CONDITIONS:  During November 2014, Carmel River 

streamflow at the MPWMD Highway 1 gage (HW 1) was 0 cubic-feet per second (cfs).   As of 

November 30, the wetted river front remained near Robinson Canyon Road Bridge (River Mile, 

[RM], 8.46).  An additional 2.4 miles of stream was dry or intermittent in the reach between 

West Garzas Well, (RM 12.1) and Rosie’s Bridge (Esquiline Road, RM 14.5). 

 

Mean daily streamflow in November at the District’s Carmel River at Sleepy Hollow Weir 

gaging station ranged from 2.1 to 4.3 cfs, with a mean monthly flow of 2.68 cfs.  During 

November, 1.50 inches of rainfall were recorded at California American Water’s (CAW) San 

Clemente Dam (SCD).  The rainfall total for WY 2015 (which started on October 1, 2014) is 

1.57 inches, or 74.4% of the long-term annual average of 2.11 inches. 

  
CARMEL RIVER LAGOON:  In November 2014, the lagoon’s water-surface elevation 

(WSE) stayed relatively stable near 4.0 feet above mean sea level (see graph below).  Surface 

inflow to the lagoon ceased on May 24, 2013.   

 

Water quality profiles were conducted in late November at five lagoon sites.  Most of the lagoon 

was murky and stratified at one-meter depth.  Water temperatures continued to cool, ranging 

from 56 - 65 degrees F.  Dissolved oxygen (DO) levels ranged from 0.5 – 14 mg/L, while 

salinity levels rose to 4 - 14 ppt due to wave over wash. 

 

LOWER RIVER STEELHEAD RESCUES:  Staff began steelhead smolt and juvenile rescues 

on March 3, 2014, the earliest rescue start since 1991.  In November only one resident adult 

needed to be rescued, bringing the 2014 rescue total to 3,820 fish, including: 883 smolts, 2,341 

non-smolted juveniles, 586 young-of-year (YOY), eight adults, and two mortalities.  The YOY 

fish are progeny from non-sea run spawning adults – possibly the large fish released from the 

Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility last fall. The smolts and early season adults were 

acclimated to seawater then released into the ocean at Stewart’s Cove, near the Carmel River 

mouth. The juveniles, YOY, and late season adults were transported farther upstream and 

released. 
  



BIOASSESSMENT TRAINING:  The District’s long-term benthic macroinvertebrate (BMI) 

laboratory director, Tom King of Bioassessemnt Services, was hired in November for a two-day 

in-field staff training session on the new state mandated protocol called SWAMP (Surface Water 

Ambient Monitoring Program).  Additional training was done in the Reachwide Benthic (RWB) 

sampling and habitat assessment procedure. Training and sampling were completed in the 

Cachagua area as well as above Los Padres Reservoir. 
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Exhibit 26-A shows the water supply status for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
(MPWRS) as of December 1, 2014.  This system includes the surface water resources in the Carmel River 
Basin, the groundwater resources in the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer and the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin.  Exhibit 26-A is for Water Year (WY) 2015 and focuses on four factors: rainfall, runoff, storage, 
and steelhead.  The rainfall and Streamflow values are based on measurements in the upper Carmel River 
Basin at San Clemente Dam.   
 
Water Supply Status:  As shown, rainfall through November 2014 totaled 1.57 inches and brings the 
cumulative rainfall total for WY 2015 to 2.86 inches, which is 52% of the long-term average through 
November.  Estimated unimpaired runoff during November 2014 totaled 0 acre-feet (AF) and brings the 
cumulative runoff total for WY 2015 to 0 AF, which is 0% of the long-term average through November.  
Usable storage, which includes surface and groundwater, was 24,660 AF, or 89% of the long-term average 
through November.  This storage equates to 66% of system capacity.  In addition, 0 adult steelhead were 
counted in the fish ladder at San Clemente Dam through November. 
 
Production Compliance:  Under State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Cease and Desist Order 
No. 2009-0060, California American Water (Cal-Am) is allowed to produce no more than 9,945 AF of 
water from the Carmel River in WY 2015.  In addition, under the Seaside Basin Decision, Cal-Am is 
allowed to produce 2,259AF of water from the Coastal Subareas and 48 AF from the Laguna Seca Subarea 
of the Seaside Basin in WY 2015.  Altogether, Cal-Am is currently allowed to produce 12,196 AF from 
Carmel River and Seaside Coastal sources for customers in its main Monterey system and 48 AF from the 
Laguna Seca Subarea for customers in Ryan Ranch, Hidden Hills, and Bishop Systems (not adjusted for 
ASR recovery or Sand City Desalination).  For WY 2015 through November, Cal-Am has produced 1,695 
AF from the Carmel River, Seaside Basin, Sand City Desalination, and ASR recovery, for customer use.  
This water production is 323 AF or 16.0 % less than the target specified for Cal-Am’s production from the 
MPWRS for WY 2015 through October.  A breakdown of Cal-Am’s production for WY 2015 through 
November is included as Exhibit 26-B.  Cal-Am’s production from the Carmel River Basin is reduced for 
diversions that are made for injection into the Seaside Basin; Cal-Am’s “native” Seaside Basin production 
is reduced for injected water recovery. For WY 2015 through November, 0 AF of Carmel River Basin 
groundwater have been diverted for Seaside Basin injection; 0 AF have been recovered for customer use.  
Exhibit 26-C  shows production breakdown from all sources for all uses.  Some of the values in this report 
may be revised in the future as Cal-Am finalizes their production values and monitoring data. 
 
EXHIBITS 
26-A Water Supply Status: December 1, 2014 
26-B Monthly Cal-Am Diversions from Carmel River and Seaside Groundwater Basins:  Water Year 

2015 
26-C Monthly Cal-Am production by source: WY 2015 
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORT 

 

26. MONTHLY WATER SUPPLY AND CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER 

PRODUCTION REPORT 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   N/A 

 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 

 General Manager Line Item No.: 

   

Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 



EXHIBIT 26-A 

 
 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Water Supply Status 

December 1, 2014 
 

Factor Water Year 

2015 

Oct - Nov 14  

Average 

To Date 

Percent of 

Average 

Water Year 

2014 
Oct - Nov 13 

 

 

Rainfall 
(Inches) 

1.57 

 

2.86 

 

52% 0.74 

 

 

Runoff 

(Acre-Feet) 
0 

 

1,841 0% 265 

 

 

Storage 
(Acre-Feet) 

24,660 27,480 89% 25,550 

 

 

Steelhead 
(Adults) 

(Juveniles) 

 

0 

 

 

0 

--- 

 

0% 

--- 

 

0 

-- 

 
Notes: 
 

1. Rainfall and runoff estimates are based on measurements at San Clemente Dam.  Annual rainfall and runoff at San 

Clemente Dam average 21.3 inches and 68,400 acre-feet, respectively.  Annual values are based on the water year 

that runs from October 1 to September 30 of the following calendar year.  The rainfall and runoff averages at the 

San Clemente Dam site are based on records for the 1922-2014 and 1902-2014 periods, respectively. 

 

2. The rainfall and runoff totals are based on measurements through November 2014. 

 

3. Storage estimates refer to usable storage in the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System (MPWRS) that 

includes surface water in Los Padres and San Clemente Reservoirs and ground water in the Carmel Valley 

Alluvial Aquifer and in the Coastal Subareas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.   The storage averages are end-of-

month values and are based on records for the 1989-2014 period. The storage estimates are end-of-month values 

for November 2014. 

 

4. The maximum usable storage capacity for the MPWRS at this time, with the flashboards lowered at San Clemente 

Dam, is 37,639 acre-feet.  The flashboards were last lowered on August 27, 1996, and have not been raised since 

that time.  

 

5. The adult steelhead count refers to the number of sea-run adults (> 15 inches) that have migrated up the fish ladder 

at San Clemente Dam in Water Year 2015.  The juvenile count refers to the number of juveniles that were rescued 

by District staff from drying reaches of the Carmel River and its tributaries in Water Year 2015.  The adult count 

average is based on records for the 1994-2014 period.  
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EXHIBIT 26-B

California American Water Production Distributed by Associated Water Rights: Water Year 2015
(All Values in Acre-Feet)

Carmel River Water Seaside Groundwater Seaside Groundwater Total Total Carmel River Water Seaside Groundwater Desalinated 

Diverted by Cal-Am Diverted by Cal-Am Diverted by Cal-Am Seaside Basin Production Diverted by Cal-Am Recovered by Cal-Am Water from

for Customer Service from Coastal Subareas from Laguna Seca Subarea Adjudicated Under 95-10 Rights for ASR Injection for Customer Service Sand City

Under 95-10 Rights
1

for Customer Service for Customer Service Diversions for and Seaside Basin Under 20808A and C Under ASR Rights
4

Plant

Under Adjudicated Rights
4

Under Adjudicated Rights
4

Customer Service
4

Adjudicated Rights
1,3

Rights
2

Limit: Limit: Limit: Limit: Limit: Limit: Target: Target:

9,907 2,251 48 2,299 12,206 5,326 0 300

acre-feet 
2

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet

Oct-14 614 279 33 312 926 0 0 17

Nov-14 559 149 23 172 731 0 0 20

Dec-14 0 0 0 0

Jan-15 0 0 0 0

Feb-15 0 0 0 0

Mar-15 0 0 0 0

Apr-15 0 0 0 0

May-15 0 0 0 0

Jun-15 0 0 0 0

Jul-15 0 0 0 0

Aug-15 0 0 0 0

Sep-15 0 0 0 0

Total 1,173 428 56 484 1,657 0 0 38

California American Water Limit Adjustments to Comply with Associated Water Rights : Water Year 2015

(All Values in Acre-Feet)

Carmel River Water Carmel River Water Total Water Diverted Seaside Groundwater Desalinated Total Adjustment 95-10 Water Right Total Production 

Diverted by Cal-Am Diverted by Cal-Am from Carmel River Recovered by Cal-Am Water from to 95-10 Water Right Adjusted Monthly for Customer Service

for Customer Service for ASR Injection for Customer Service for Customer Service Sand City from MPWRS

Under 95-10 Rights
1

Under 20808 Rights
3

and Injection Under ASR Rights
5

Plant
2

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet

Oct-14 614 0 614 0 17 17 9,928 943

Nov-14 559 0 559 0 20 20 9,907 751

Dec-14 0 0 0 0

Jan-15 0 0 0 0

Feb-15 0 0 0 0

Mar-15 0 0 0 0

Apr-15 0 0 0 0

May-15 0 0 0 0

Jun-15 0 0 0 0

Jul-15 0 0 0 0

Aug-15 0 0 0 0

Sep-15 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1,173 0 1,173 0 38 38 1,695

Notes: 
1.  "95-10 Rights" refer to water rights that were recognized by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) in Order No. WR 95-10 in July 1995 and assigned to California American Water.  The rights total 3,376 acre-feet annually (AFA). 
2.   "20808A Rights" refer to water rights that are held jointly by MPWMD and Cal-Am for the Phase 1 ASR project.  "ASR" refers to Aquifer Storage and Recovery.  "20808A" refers to Water Right Permit 20808A that was issued by the SWRCB 

in November 2007, for a maximum annual diversion of 2,426 AF.  "20808C" refers to water rights permit 20808C, issued in November 2011 for a maximim  annual diversion of 2,900AF. 

3.  "Adjudicated  Rights" refer to groundwater rights determined by the Superior Court of Monterey County in March 2006 and amended in February 2007.  These limits are subject to change by action of the Seaside Basin Watermaster and were 

updated by the Watermaster on November 30, 2011.   
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EXHIBIT 26-B

Quarterly Water Budget Targets vs. Rule 162: Water Year 2015
(All Values in Acre Feet)

Production

95-10 ASR Total Seaside Seaside Seaside ASR Recovery Sand City Monthly End of Month End of Month MPWRS

Monthly Budget Diversion Carmel River Adjudication Adjudication Adjudication Budget Desal Production Production Cumulative to date to date

for Injection Diversions for Monthly Monthly Monthly Budget for Customer Adopted

Customer Service Budget Budget Budget Use Target
5

and ASR Injection (Coastal) (Laguna Seca) Combined MPWRS MPWRS

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet

1st Oct-14 667 0 667 400 5 405 0 25 1,097 1,097 1,097 943

Qtr Nov-14 593 0 593 300 3 303 0 25 921 921 2,019 751

Dec-14 2,831

2nd Jan-15 3,643

Qtr Feb-15 4,406

Mar-15 5,273

3rd Apr-15 6,206

Qtr May-15 7,341

Jun-15 8,521

4th Jul-15 9,805

Qtr Aug-15 11,069

Sep-15 12,243

2,018

California American Water Production vs. Water Budget and Water Right Limits: Water Year 2015

(All Values in Acre Feet)

Cal-Am Production vs. Quarterly Water Budget Targets

acre-feet under % Under acre-feet under % under acre-feet under % under acre-feet under % under acre-feet under % under acre-feet under % under

1st Oct-14 53 0 121 0 -28 -6 93 0 8 0 154 14.0%

Qtr Nov-14 34 0 151 1 -20 -7 131 0 5 0 170 18.4%

Dec-14

2nd Jan-15

Qtr Feb-15

Mar-15

3rd Apr-15

Qtr May-15

Jun-15

4th Jul-15

Qtr Aug-15

Sep-15

AF Remaining % Remaining AF Remaining % Remaining AF Remaining % Remaining AF Remaining % Remaining AF Remaining % Remaining

8,734 88.2% 1,823 81.0% -8 -16.4% 1,815 78.9% 262 87.4%

Rule 162

Monthly Comparison Monthly Comparison Monthly Comparison Monthly Comparison

Sand City Desal Cal-Am Production vs. Rule 162

Cal-Am Production vs. EOM Totals

Monthly Comparison

vs. Monthly Targets

Year to Date

Annual
323 16.0%Statistics

95 - 10 Production

Quarterly Budget 

Seaside Coastal Laguna Seca Seaside Combined

for Customer Use 

4.  "Target" refers to the maximum amount of water that Cal-Am will try to recover each year for customer service as part of the Phase 1 and 2 ASR Project.  The actual amount of water that is recovered will depend on the amount injected 

during a particular water year and previous water years.   

5. Monthly Budget Target numbers from Quarterly Budget Meetings. 

6. Budget Target vs. Rule 162 used for the purpose of tracking compliance with MPWMD water rationing rules. 

7. Water Production vs. Water Budget and Water Rights Limits are tracked for compliance with Order 2009-0060 and Seaside Adjudication. 

8. Production from ASR and Sand City Desalination plant reduce 95-10 water right. 
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EXHIBIT 26-C

California American Water Production by Source: Water Year 2015

Actual Anticipated

Acre-Feet 

Under Target Actual Anticipated Under Target

Upper Lower Upper Lower Upper Lower Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet

Oct-14 0 614 0 667 0 53 279 33 400 5 121 -28 926 1,072 146 17 25 8

Nov-14 0 559 0 593 0 34 149 23 300 3 151 -20 731 896 165 20 25 5

Dec-14

Jan-15

Feb-15

Mar-15

Apr-15

May-15

Jun-15

Jul-15

Aug-15

Sep-15

To Date 0 1173 0 1260 0 87 428 56 700 8 272 -48 1657 1968 311 38 50 12

Total Production: Water Year 2015

Oct-14 1,097

Nov-14 921

Dec-14

Jan-15

Feb-15

Mar-15

Apr-15

May-15

Jun-15

Jul-15

Aug-15

Sep-15

To Date 2,018

Sand City DesalSeaside Wells 
2

Anticipated

Total WellsCarmel Valley Wells 
1

154

170

943

Anticipated 
3

Actual

Under Target Under Target

Anticipated Acre-Feet Under Target

Actual Actual

1,695 323

751

1.   Carmel Valley Wells include upper and lower valley wells.  Anticipate production from this source includes monthly production volumes associated with SBO 2009-60, 20808A, and 20808C water rights.  Under these water 
rights,  water produced from the Carmel Valley wells is delivered to customers or injected into the Seaside Groundwater Basin for storage. 
 
2.  Seaside wells anticipated production is associated with pumping native Seaside Groundwater (which is regulated by the Seaside Groundwater Basin Ajudication Decision) and recovery of stored ASR water (which is prescribed in 
a MOA between MPWMD , Cal-Am, California Department of Fish and Game, National Marine Fisheries Service, and as regulated by 20808C water right. 
 
3.  Current "anticipated" water budget reflects "Normal" Carmel River inflow conditions and monthly distribution of production based on long-term averages for the Cal-Am system. 
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ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 

 

27. SEMI-ANNUAL GROUNDWATER QUALITY MONITORING REPORT 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2014 Budgeted:   Yes 

 

From: David Stoldt,  Program/  2.6 Hydrologic Monitoring  

 General Manager Line Item No.: 2-6-1 

 

Prepared By: Thomas Lindberg Cost Estimate:  N/A 

 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 

CEQA Compliance:  N/A 

 

SUMMARY:  Water-quality results from the Summer 2014 sampling of the Monterey Peninsula 

Water Management District’s (District’s) well network in the Carmel Valley aquifer are 

presented in Exhibit 27-A and briefly summarized below.  Results from Spring 2013 are also 

provided for comparison. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The District has maintained a groundwater quality monitoring program in 

the Carmel Valley Aquifer since 1981 and in the Seaside Groundwater Basin since 1990. 

Currently, the sampling schedule for Carmel Valley is staggered, with upper valley wells (i.e., 

upgradient of the Narrows) normally sampled in Spring, and lower Carmel Valley wells sampled 

in Fall, to coincide with the historically higher nitrate concentrations in these respective areas.  

Collection of samples from the Seaside Basin coastal water-quality monitor wells is conducted 

once per year in Summer, coinciding with the seasonally low water levels in the basin at that 

time of the year.   

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:  Carmel Valley Aquifer Monitor Wells - Results from the 

Summer 2014 and Spring 2013 samplings are provided in Exhibit 26-A.  Three shallow monitor 

wells in the upper Carmel Valley are normally sampled each Spring, per the sampling schedule 

described above.  The wells were not sampled in Spring 2014.  Due to other time constraints, 

they were sampled in early Summer 2014 rather than missing a full year of sample collection.  

Staff intends to get these wells back on the Spring sampling schedule.  The locations of these 

sampling points are shown on the map in Exhibit 27-B.  Review of these water-quality results 

indicates very little significant changes in overall water quality in Summer 2014 compared to 

samples collected in Spring 2013.  The only changes noted are an anomalous spike in total Iron 

and Manganese concentrations in one well, 16S/2E-33Q1.  A similar observation was made in 

2011, but concentrations had dropped back to expected levels by Spring 2013, only to spike 

again in 2014.  Dissolved Iron or Manganese were not detected from either well in 2014.  

Samples were analyzed by Monterey Bay Analytical Services.  All constituents that have 

established Drinking Water Standards are within acceptable limits in Spring 2013.  

  

It should be noted that historical sampling revealed relatively high nitrate concentrations (up to 

22 milligrams per liter [mg/L]) in two upper Carmel Valley monitor wells in Spring 1998, 



although those observed nitrate concentrations were well below the drinking water standard of 

45 mg/L.  The Carmel Valley Master Plan established an “action level” of 25 mg/l of nitrate due 

to concern about the limitations of septic systems in this unsewered portion of Carmel Valley. 

Those relatively high readings were attributed to the flushing effect of severe storm events in the 

winter of 1998.  Results of more recent samplings from all three shallow wells indicate that 

nitrate concentrations have returned to more normal levels.  In 2014, the nitrate levels in two 

wells (17S/2E-10B1 and 16S/2E-33Q1) remained below the action level.  The nitrate 

concentration in the third well (17S/2E-03La) remained below the practical quantitation limit 

(i.e., detection limit).  

 

EXHIBITS  

27-A Groundwater Quality Monitoring Results for Summer 2014 and Spring 2013 

27-B Map of Monitor Well Locations in Upper Carmel Valley 
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EXHIBIT 27-A

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

GROUND WATER QUALITY MONITORING RESULTS

Carmel Valley Aquifer Sample Collection Date:  July 2, 2014
Units are milligrams per liter unless otherwise noted.

Water Quality 

Constituent

Specific 

Conductance 

(micromhos/c

m)

Total 

Alkalinity   

(as CACO3)

pH Chloride Sulfate

Ammonia 

Nitrogen (as 

NH3)

Nitrate 

Nitrogen (as 

NO3)

Total 

Organic 

Carbon

Calcium Sodium Magnesium Potassium Iron Manganese
Orthophos-

phate

Total 

Dissolved 

Solids

Hardness      

(as CaC03)
Boron Bromide Fluoride

Drinking Water Standard (1)900 1600 2200 (2) NA NA 250 500 600 (2) 250 500 600 (2) NA 45 NA NA NA NA NA 0.3 0.05 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Sampling Location

Upper Carmel Valley Aquifer

16S/2E-33Q1 474 149 6.8 25 56 <0.05 0.6 1.06 51 27 17 5.0 9.463 0.859 <0.1 277 197 <0.05 <0.1 0.3

17S/2E-03La 372 126 7.1 14 39 <0.05 <1 0.88 38 20 12 2.5  <0.010  <0.010 <0.1 208 144 <0.05 <0.1 0.2

17S/2E-10B1 448 143 7.0 20 55 <0.05 2 1.28 44 30 14 2.4  <0.010  <0.010 <0.1 274 168 <0.05 <0.1 0.5

 (1)   Maximum contaminant levels are from California Domestic Water Quality and Monitoring Regulations, Title 22, 1977.

 (2)   The three values listed for certain constituents refer to the "recommended" level, the "upper" level, and "short-term use" level, respectively.

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

GROUND WATER QUALITY MONITORING RESULTS

Carmel Valley Aquifer Sample Collection Date:  March 20, 2013
Units are milligrams per liter unless otherwise noted.

Water Quality 

Constituent

Specific 

Conductance 

(micromhos/c

m)

Total 

Alkalinity   

(as CACO3)

pH Chloride Sulfate

Ammonia 

Nitrogen (as 

NH3)

Nitrate 

Nitrogen (as 

NO3)

Total 

Organic 

Carbon

Calcium Sodium Magnesium Potassium Iron Manganese
Orthophos-

phate

Total 

Dissolved 

Solids

Hardness      

(as CaC03)
Boron Bromide Fluoride

Drinking Water Standard (1)900 1600 2200 (2) NA NA 250 500 600 (2) 250 500 600 (2) NA 45 NA NA NA NA NA 0.3 0.05 NA NA NA NA NA NA

Sampling Location

Upper Carmel Valley Aquifer

16S/2E-33Q1 485 141 7.4 27 52 <0.05 0.6 0.92 47 26 13 2.6 0.066  <0.010 <0.1 306 171 <0.05 <0.1 0.2

17S/2E-03La 302 105 7.3 11 23 <0.05 <1 0.75 30 16 10 2.2  <0.010  <0.010 <0.1 189 116 <0.05 <0.1 0.1

17S/2E-10B1 629 167 7.1 36 82 <0.05 4 1.8 61 36 21 3.2 0.014 0.014 <0.1 406 239 0.10 <0.1 0.2

 (1)   Maximum contaminant levels are from California Domestic Water Quality and Monitoring Regulations, Title 22, 1977.

 (2)   The three values listed for certain constituents refer to the "recommended" level, the "upper" level, and "short-term use" level, respectively.
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      EXHIBIT 27-B 

LOCATION OF MPWMD CARMEL VALLEY WATER QUALITI MONITORING WELLS 
(River Mile 11.75 to 15.50) 

, 

O;'"i~'~2~5~O~~2~50~O~~~~5~O~O~O~~~~7~5~OO~~~~'0~OIOO Feet 

Ri ver Mile (RM ) Well Common Name State Well Number 

1252 

MoW.PT~ER 
1355 

1428 

MANAQ~NT D1slfllc T. 

Boronda Rd 

Little League #1 

De Los Helechos 

T15S'R2E-3.3.QJ 

T17SfR2E-Q3La 

T17S/R2E-.1Q.8J 
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